
RICHMOND PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

May 27, 2020 

Electronic Meeting 
Pursuant to and in Compliance with  

City of Richmond Ordinance No. 2020-093 

11:45 a.m. 



 

 

 
Richmond Public Library Board 

101 E. Franklin Street 
Richmond, VA 23219 

(804) 646-4256 / fax: (804) 646-7685  
 

Library Board of Trustees Meeting 
Wednesday, May 27, 2020 

11:45 a.m. 
 

A G E N D A  
This meeting will be held as an electronic meeting pursuant to and in compliance with the City of Richmond 
Ordinance #2020-093. The public may participate by using Richmond Public Library YouTube channel 
https://bit.ly/2VfKL9U, where it will be Live Streamed.  Viewers may watch and comment during the presentation.  
Citizens are able to offer any formal public comments no later than Tuesday, May 26, 2020 by 5:00 p.m. to: Library 
Director Scott Firestine, Phone: 804.646.4550 or Email: scott.firestine@richmondgov.com. 
 
 
Call to order:   11:45 a.m. Mr. William Yates 

 
Agenda  Mr. William Yates 
Consent Agenda:  Mr. William Yates 

• Approval of Minutes-April 22, 2020  
• Approval of Pending Gifts   
• Approval of Statistical Report   

  

Public Comment Period:     
 

Reports: 12:00 p.m.  
• Library Friends   Ms. DeBoer/Mr. Dishon 
• Library Foundation   Ms. Hansen 

 
Administration Reports:  Mr. Firestine 

 
Board Committee Reports: 12:10 p.m.  

• Chairman  Mr. Yates 
• Finance Committee  Ms. Weaver 
• Facilities Committee  Mr. Firestine 
• Governance Committee  Mr. Lydiard 

 
Unfinished Business 12:30 p.m. Mr. Yates 

   
New Business  

 
12:40 p.m. 

 
Mr. Yates 
 

Adjourn  
 

 Mr. Yates 

Next Meeting:   
June 24, 2020 
Main Library/Electronic Meeting 
11:45 a.m.  

Page 2 of 24 
 

https://bit.ly/2VfKL9U
mailto:scott.firestine@richmondgov.com


Library Board Meeting Minutes - DRAFT 
April 22, 2020 

 
PRESENT: Chair William Yates, Vice Chair David Lydiard, Emily Altman, Christine Peterson, Daisy Weaver, Janet 

Woody 
 
STAFF: Scott Firestine, Clay Dishon City Attorney Laura Drewry, Cheryl Clarke, Karin Hansen, Gianna Pack, 

Friends of the Library Chair Ruth DeBoer 
 
ABSENT:  Barbara Burton, Tanya Francis 

 
Meeting of the Richmond Public Library (RPL) Library Board of Trustees (LBOT) was called to order by Chair 
William Yates at 11:50 a.m. This meeting was held as an electronic meeting pursuant to and in compliance with the City 
of Richmond Ordinance #2020-093. The public participated by using Richmond Public Library YouTube channel 
https://bit.ly/2VfKL9U, where it was Live Streamed.  A quorum was established. 
 
Agenda Approve the April 22, 2020 Agenda as submitted by roll call vote: 

Chair William Yates – AYE   Christine Peterson – AYE 
Vice Chair David Lydiard – AYE  Daisy Weaver – AYE 
Emily Altman – AYE    Janet Woody – AYE 
 
AYES: 6  NOES: 0   ABSTAIN: 0    Approved Unanimously. 

 
Consent Agenda 
 

Approve the February 26, 2020 Meeting Minutes, Statistical Reports, and Pending Gifts Report 
as submitted. 

Chair William Yates – AYE   Christine Peterson – AYE 
Vice Chair David Lydiard – AYE  Daisy Weaver – AYE 
Emily Altman – AYE    Janet Woody – AYE 
 
AYES: 6  NOES: 0   ABSTAIN: 0    Approved Unanimously. 

 
Public Comment 
Period 

None present. 
 

REPORTS 
Friends of the 
Library (FOL)  
 
Ruth DeBoer 
 

Ms. DeBoer reported the Friends financial year ended March 31, 2020. New financial year 
starts April 1, 2020 with an approved budget and also decided to balance out the income to 
outlay, which means for this past year there was an additional $2,700 to give to the Library.   
For Year 19/20 the Friends gave just over $24,000 for programing, other gifts already made, 
and graphics and copier expenses, makes an outlay of approximately $35,000 to the Library. 
She also reported in the new budget year, there is a savings that would cover a year of expenses. 
 
She also reported due to the COVID19 closure of the City, the book sale scheduled for the first 
weekend in April was postponed until further notice.  The book sale is the big money maker 
for the Friends to be able to give more to the Library. 

Library 
Foundation  
 
Karin Hansen 
 

Ms. Hanson reported everything is still running smoothly.  She is working from home as much 
as possible.  She also reported donations were slowing down and grant seeking has come to a 
halt due to the COVID19 pandemic.  
 
The Foundation was able to accommodate a request from the West End Library Branch.  This 
effort is to pass out new children’s books at the Richmond Public Schools food distribution 
sites.  She also reported giving assistance to on-line programming requests. 
 

Page 3 of 24 
 

https://bit.ly/2VfKL9U


Administration 
 
Scott Firestine 

Highlights and Additions to Director’s Report:  During the Director’s Report, Mr. Firestine 
highlighted on the following items:  

• During the COVID19 City closure, we are providing content through the website, staff are 
staying and working from home pushing out the content.  Also training at home that we 
cannot do normally when libraries are open. Training consisting of customer service, 
various library topics, and Sirsi training. 

• Daily videoconferencing call with leadership team to review where we are in training, 
website content, and working on a return to work process. Using the Slack platform 
because some staff do not have email access through the City’s server. 

• Over 800 new electronic users.  RPS is also reaching out RPL for electronic resources.  

• In the process of moving Sirsi into the cloud. 

• Budget.  Decrease in revenue. 

• In the process of researching how to deliver books to patrons.  There are concerns on how 
the books will return.  Also researching curb-side service. 

BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Chair 
 

William Yates 
 

No Report.  Mr. Yates acknowledge and thanked Mr. Firestine and staff for their service and 
accomplishments during these hard times. 
 

Finance 
 

 
Scott Firestine 
Daisy Weaver 
 

No Report from the Finance Committee.  Mr. Firestine facilitated a budget discussion with 
Board members. 
 
On March 6, the Mayor released his budget. Mr. Firestine reported on the Budget going over 
the Agency Fiscal Summary. On March 6 the report showed a 3.5% cut. Operations stayed the 
same. Did not receive any new librarian positions and vacancies requests. 
 
Mr. Firestine also reported changes after COVID19 happened.  FY21 Proposed Budget was 
$6,076,667 and the FY21 Updated Budget with Amendments was $5,743,900, which is about 
an 8.9% cut to our overall budget.  This total arrived from the following: Elimination of the 
2% salary increase for all employees, vacancy funding reduction, reductions to contractual 
temps, fuel reduction, and about a 10% cut to books and reference materials.   
 
He also reported on the impact if vacancies are not filled.  There would be a reduction of public 
service hours such as elimination of Sunday hours, reduction of evening service hours at all 
locations.  Mr. Firestine encouraged Board Members to reach out to their Council member the 
impacts of what the Library will undergo from budget and vacancy cuts. Library Board 
Members devised a list of points to consider and to be consistent when reaching out to Council 
members. Mr. Yates will send out the points discussed and who will reach out to which Council 
member. 
 

  

Page 4 of 24 
 



BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS (CONTINUED) 
Facilities 
 
Cheryl Clarke 

Ms. Clarke reported on the first floor restroom renovations are close to completion at Main. 
The contractors are working on the final punch list.  Furniture has arrived for the lactation 
room.  Everything is on schedule for final completion. She also reported DPW/DPU are using 
this time to replace light bulbs, fix minor issues, etc. within the Main Library and Library 
Branches. 

 
Mr. Firestine reported on the RFP for the Master Plan is still in Procurement and Legal.  
Ms. Drewry said she would research the status. 

 
Governance 
 
David Lydiard 

Mr. Lydiard reported due to the COIVD19 Closure of the City, everything is on hold for 
selection of new Board members.  He also mentioned that existing members would be able to 
continue to stay on the Board until the Council has an opportunity to make a selection. 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
No Unfinished Business was discussed. 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
No New Business was discussed. 
 

 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:02 p.m. by unanimous consensus from the members that 
were present in the meeting. 
 
The next meeting will be held on Wednesday, May 27, 2020 by Electronic Meeting. 
      
 
 Approved:       
        Mr. William Yates, Chair  
Recorder: Gianna Pack 
 Executive Assistant 
  

Page 5 of 24 
 



 
Director’s Report 
May 2020 
Director Activities for April 22 through May 22, 2020: 

 
Apr 27 Council Amendment Work Session 
Apr 27 Council Formal Meeting to Include Public Hearing Regarding FY21 Budget 
Apr 29 Council Amendment Work Session 
Apr 30 Council Amendment Work Session 
May 4 Council Special Meeting – Budget Amendments Introduction 
May 5 RPL Poet Laureate Discussion with Christine Peterson – Teleconference 
May 11 Council Budget Public Hearing – FY21 Budget 
May 12 RVAH2O Technical Stakeholder Update – Teleconference 
May 12 Special Funds Exit Meeting – Teleconference  
May 19 RPL Poet Laureate Discussion with Christine Peterson – Conference Call 
May 22 RPL Poet Laureate Discussion with Christine Peterson and Sandra Treadway – Teleconference 

 
Hiring Update: Hiring Freeze instituted by the City on April 16.  All open positions and positions in progress are halted 
until the City reopens. 
 
City of Richmond Government Offices Closed for Non-Essential Personnel March 13 – May 28:  The closure is in 
compliance with the Governor of Virginia to ensure the health and safety of residents, employees, and the general public 
in response to COVID19 pandemic.  Essential employees only are required to report to or for work.  All RPL staff were 
deemed essential and are working and being productive. Communicating through the SLAC application, staff are 
providing content for the RPL website and training remotely. 
 
The RPL Leadership Team holds daily conference calls to coordinate operations, communicate progress on goals, 
objectives and problems and develop strategies to safely re-open libraries and provide library service. 
 
Staff Development:  Managers have developed a curriculum to use during the City’s closure for staff to do from home.  
The training is on City COR classes, customer service, and Library specific operational resources such as online 
databases, electronic content, research indices, MOOCs, etc.  These trainings are objective based and measurable. All 
staff are participating at all levels and training is mandatory. 
 
Staff Returning to Work:  The RPL Leadership Team developed a plan for the phased reopening of library services.  
This plan seeks to handle several different reopening scenarios, each dependent on factors such as recommendations 
from local and national health agencies, social distancing protocols, and critical community needs.  The primary 
consideration of the plan is maintaining the safety of library patrons and staff while finding ways to provide necessary 
services that the library is uniquely positioned to perform.  
 
The most likely scenario may be a scaled reopening with an incremental easing of physical distancing measures. In any 
of the scenarios the Library will implement the following: 
• Improved hygiene procedures for cleaning and disinfecting common areas. 
• Allowing staff to wear protective gear such as masks and gloves while administering public services. 
• Continuing to allow teleworking where it makes sense and is allowable from an operational standpoint. 
• Encourage or require temperature testing with thermal thermometers.  Those staff with temperatures exceeding 

100°F will be sent for medical evaluation.  Eventually provide testing of staff for virus and/or for immunity to 
the virus. 

• Messaging and plans will be in place to encourage the most vulnerable populations to limit their time in the 
community and/or allow for service hours that accommodate their needs more specifically. 

 
Library is acquiring hygiene and cleaning supplies for library staff to enact a reopening.  RPL will have to address 
challenges in the following areas: entrance needs, materials handling, holds and materials return and pickup, 
checkouts, outreach, Internet access, and technology help.  

Page 6 of 24 
 



Director’s Report (Continued) 
May 2020 
 
 
RFP for the Integrate Library System (ILS on-line catalog) Update:  Complete, installed May 1, 2020. 
 
RFP for the Main Library Facilities Master Plan Update:  No progress. 
 
Personal Protective Equipment (PPE):  The Library has two 3-D printers. Staff are printing parts to assemble 
masks/shields that could be used to protect first responders and answer the demand for PPE. These are also for RPL 
staff to use when they return to work. 
 
We are ordering PPE for staff to use.  Items included are gloves, masks, thermometers, wipes, hand sanitizer, etc.  
Each Branch and Main Library will have on-hand stock.   
 
Digital Services Statistics:  With the sudden closure on March 13, RPL began creating significant amounts of digital 
content in order to best serve patrons remotely. Online reference tools, a new weekly newsletter, and a sharp increase 
in social media use effectively pivoted services to virtual space.   
 
Ask-A-Librarian (March 23 – April 30): 

Questions via Chat Questions via Text Questions via Email Total 
52 30 32 114 

 
RPL @ Home Newsletter (March 20 – April 30): 

Issue Date Number of Subscribers Grand Total of Emails Sent 
03/20 14,495 14,495 
03/27 14,480 28,975 
04/06 14,441 43,416 
04/13 14,417 57,833 
04/20 14,460 72,293 
04/27 14,433 86,726 

 
Social Media (March 14 – April 30): 

Platform Followers 
(March 14) 

Followers 
(April 30) 

Net 
Trend 

New 
Posts 

Total Post/Page 
Views 

Facebook 3,498 3,591 +93 83 54,050 (approx.) 
Instagram     N/A 
Twitter     N/A 
YouTube 33 58 +25 15 1,258 

 
Other New Digital Programs: 

Bunker Book Club (Facebook Group) – 37 active members 
Ripple’s Reading Buddies – 1 user 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 7 of 24 
 



 
Insert Circulation Report 
CIRCULATION                               

LOCATION FY JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN Total YTD % 
Change 

Belmont 

FY17 12,068  12,314    9,973    9,766    9,727    9,071    9,709    9,715  10,114    9,238    9,446  10,411  121,552    
FY18 10,836  10,486    8,290    8,385    7,353    6,096    7,651    7,545    8,099    7,402    7,632    7,864    97,639   

FY19   8,429    8,074    8,103    7,888    7,303    6,144    7,099    6,630    8,077    6,712    6,436    7,110    88,005  -11% 
FY20   7,451    7,560    7,207    7,097    5,795    5,963    6,495    6,449    3,028         11        57,056  0% 

  

Broad Rock 

FY17   4,883    4,773    4,248    4,706    3,966    3,454    3,729    3,192    3,595    3,377    3,851    4,136    47,910    
FY18   4,574    4,062    3,726    3,809    3,665    3,096    3,308   2,986    3,132    3,304    2,910    3,289    41,861    
FY19   3,910    3,609    2,671    3,217    2,505    2,086    2,488    2,801    2,843    2,389    2,419    3,119    34,057  -23% 
FY20   3,652    3,036    2,939    2,998    2,323    2,389    2,331   2,347    1,166           5        23,186  0% 

  

East End 

FY17   4,572    4,371    3,581    3,420    2,945    3,029    3,463    2,981    3,529    4,977    3,515    3,460    43,843    
FY18   3,635    3,481    3,033    2,948    2,632    2,281    2,698    2,574    2,838    2,637   2,865    3,325    34,947    
FY19   2,996    2,648    2,614    2,820    2,587    2,176    2,915    2,451    2,249    2,046   2,087    2,534    30,123  -16% 
FY20   2,696    2,663    2,476    2,574    2,020    2,240    2,219    2,431    1,061         15        20,395  0% 

  

Ginter Park 

FY17   6,247    5,924    5,374    5,770    5,031    4,517    4,812    4,582    5,401    4,641    4,868    5,310    62,477    
FY18   5,751    6,070    5,338    5,152    4,854    3,898    4,327    4,370    4,522    4,653    4,023    5,263    58,221    
FY19   5,211    5,163    4,864    4,278    3,762    2,812    3,864    3,653    4,408    3,384    4,174    4,381    49,954  -17% 
FY20   4,397    4,580    4,030    3,823    3,332    3,021    3,599    3,327    1,690  0       31,799  0% 

  

Hull Street 

FY17   3,174    3,245    3,088    3,131    3,400    2,477    2,816    2,962    2,989    2,348    2,766    2,843    35,239    
FY18   2,947    3,155    2,178    2,106    2,202    1,772    2,218    2,304    2,241    2,034    1,824    2,147    27,128    
FY19   2,010    2,305    3,323    1,844    1,838    1,852    2,287    1,870    1,854    1,828    1,976    2,026    25,013  -8% 
FY20   3,082    1,912    2,065    2,508    2,128    2,012    2,012    1,846   1,020           6        18,591  0% 

  

Main 

FY17 12,103  12,264  10,330  10,655    9,611    9,049    9,629    9,600  10,821    8,969    9,826  10,528  123,385    
FY18 10,304  11,144    9,794    9,946    9,126    7,750    9,149    8,706    9,223    8,069    7,769    8,155  109,135    
FY19   8,719    8,877    8,655    9,774    9,099    8,202    9,418    8,749    9,621    9,177   8,795    9,300  108,386  -1% 
FY20 10,098    9,666    8,766    9,068    7,683    7,728    8,141    8,884    4,104    1,067        75,205  0% 

  
NOTE:  March / April / May 2020 - City of Richmond Closed March 13, 2020 until TBD for COVID19 Closure. 

  

Page 8 of 24 
 



 
CIRCULATION (CONTINUED)                       

LOCATION FY JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN Total YTD % 
Change 

North Avenue 

FY17   4,235    4,448    3,768    3,564    3,308    3,260    2,972    2,943    3,186   2,714    3,017    2,985    40,400    
FY18   3,112    3,455    3,238    3,802    3,011    2,562    3,094    3,328   3,093    2,580   2,271    2,269    35,815    
FY19   2,979    2,493    2,709    2,918    2,390    2,059   2,604   2,264    2,367    2,887    2,243    2,657    30,570  -17% 
FY20   2,962    2,210    2,462    2,197    1,689    1,925    2,731    1,722       865         91        0% 

  

West End 

FY17      983    1,070       785       752       628       604       647       568       745       502       591       613      8,488    
FY18      826    3,012    7,426    8,165   7,940    6,974    7,981    7,390    8,641    8,882    9,802  11,202    88,241    
FY19 11,660  11,438  10,076  10,172    8,539    7,313    9,145    7,434    9,007   8,380    8,746    9,681  111,591  21% 
FY20 11,712  10,702    9,142    8,743    8,067    8,072    9,006    9,183    4,541         80        79,248  0% 

  

Westover Hills 

FY17   9,530    9,400    8,231    8,065    7,407    7,223    7,564    7,848    8,405    6,798    8,059    8,058    96,588    
FY18   8,685    8,571   7,262    7,133    6,933    6,324    6,895    6,548    6,576    6,660    6,186    7,501    85,274    
FY19  8,071    7,787    7,566    7,102    6,120    5,364    7,072    6,155    6,511    6,120    5,793    6,435    80,096  -6% 
FY20   7,419    7,175    5,888    6,137    5,631    5,376   6,043   6,342    2,946         70        53,027  0% 

  

Econtent 

FY17   4,107    3,770    3,470    3,611    3,568    3,899    3,962    3,701    4,370    4,102    3,906    4,494    46,960    
FY18   4,676    4,689    4,042    4,125    3,923    3,874    4,566   4,224    4,835    4,935    5,409    5,320   54,618    
FY19   5,985    6,407    5,683    5,581    5,278    5,874    6,375    5,874    6,532    6,132    6,424    6,798    72,943  25% 
FY20   7,526    7,283    6,250    5,145    4,926    5,365    6,125   5,380   6,643    9,558        64,201  0% 

  

RPL Total 

FY17 61,902  61,579  52,848  53,440  49,591  46,583  49,303  48,092  53,155  47,666  49,845  52,838  626,842    
FY18 57,515  60,843  56,558  57,424  54,326  48,350  54,710  52,552  55,906  55,332  53,155  59,017  665,688    
FY19 59,970  58,801  56,264  55,594  49,421  43,882  53,267  47,881  53,469  49,055  49,093  54,041  630,738  -6% 
FY20 60,995  56,787  51,225  50,290  43,594  44,091  48,702  47,911  27,064  10,903                   441,562  0% 

  
NOTE:  March / April / May 2020 - City of Richmond Closed March 13, 2020 until TBD for COVID19 Closure. 

 
 
 
  

Page 9 of 24 
 



 
 
Iert Door Count FY20 
Insert Door Count 

DOOR COUNT FY2020 Jul-19 Aug-
19 

Sep-
19 

Oct-
19 

Nov-
19 

Dec-
19 

Jan-
20 

Feb-
20 

Mar-
20 

Apr-
20 

May-
20 

Jun-
20 TOTAL 

Belmont   6,934    7,335    6,992    6,550    6,032    5,865    6,449    6,300    2,347  0       54,804  

Broad Rock   5,768    5,768    5,457    5,571    4,162    4,596    5,277    5,903    2,821  0       45,323  

East End   7,605    8,331    6,965    6,743    6,084    6,056    7,132    7,646    3,244  0       59,806  

Ginter Park 13,767  11,850  10,575    9,608    7,109    4,819    5,823    5,578    3,147  0       72,276  

Hull Street 11,614  10,646    9,344    8,181    6,499    6,550    7,395    8,144    3,855  0       72,228  

Main 16,244  15,626  14,553  14,962  12,244  11,434  13,119  12,936   5,409  0     116,527  

North Avenue   6,383    6,431    5,580    6,712    5,102    3,812    4,759    5,835    2,917  0       47,531  

West End   5,102    4,752    4,127    3,845    3,438    3,736    4,437    4,295    2,364  0       36,096  

Westover Hills   8,342    8,287    7,657    7,986    6,575    5,861    7,763    8,253    4,813  0       65,537  

TOTALS FY20: 81,759  79,026  71,250  70,158  57,245  52,729  62,154  64,890  30,917         0                          570,128  

TOTALS FY19: 70,641  73,411  62,975  66,230  62,257  48,425  63,139  60,259  67,552  68,862  67,399  70,910  782,060  

TOTALS FY18: 62,057  74,617  69,494  70,700  63,466  55,560  63,750  65,351  68,782  69,881  70,586  71,037  805,281  

NOTE:  March / April / May 2020 - City of Richmond Closed March 13, 2020 until TBD for COVID19 Closure.  

Insert FY20 Door Count vs. Circulation – September 2019 
  

Page 10 of 24 
 



 
Insert Programs FY20 

PROGRAMS FY2020 Jul-19 Aug-
19 

Sep-
19 

Oct-
19 

Nov-
19 

Dec-
19 

Jan-
20 

Feb-
20 

Mar-
20 

Apr-
20 

May-
20 

Jun-
20 

TOTAL 
FY20 

TOTAL 
FY19 

Belmont  
Adult Programs 15 13 11 16 10 15 15 15 5 0     115 246 

Adult Attend 90 70 52 102 88 49 92 84 19 0     646 1,321 
Young Adult Programs 1 1 1 0 3 2 1 1 0 0     10 11 

Young Adult Attend 12 31 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0     45 23 
Juvenile Programs 8 4 3 0 2 2 3 5 0 0     27 90 

Juvenile Attend 258 95 11 0 9 10 39 51 0 0     473 1,953 
Total Attend 360 196 65 102 97 59 131 135 19 0 0 0 1,164 3,297 

Total Programs 24 18 15 16 15 19 19 21 5 0 0 0 152 347 
Broad Rock  

Adult Programs 4 6 18 4 17 18 6 12 4 0     89 231 
Adult Attend 22 37 84 33 81 61 32 128 20 0     498 1,336 

Young Adult Programs 4 4 5 3 6 14 19 4 9 0     68 52 
Young Adult Attend 94 57 73 45 99 65 76 67 13 0     589 708 
Juvenile Programs 16 17 15 15 13 20 32 18 16 0     162 303 

Juvenile Attend 318 277 129 265 361 332 423 370 270 0     2,745 3,637 
Total Attend 434 371 286 343 541 458 531 565 303 0 0 0 3,832 5,681 

Total Programs 24 27 38 22 36 52 57 34 29 0 0 0 319 517 
East End  

Adult Programs 40 35 40 40 26 28 72 46 23 0     350 376 
Adult Attend 264 175 214 285 222 269 268 289 94 0     2,080 3,444 

Young Adult Programs 2 1 4 3 4 2 2 3 1 0     22 55 
Young Adult Attend 14 18 11 5 7 3 5 16 5 0     84 269 
Juvenile Programs 10 18 20 14 13 13 14 21 7 0     130 145 

Juvenile Attend 84 1 72 137 97 88 86 169 43 0     777 2,364 
Total Attend 362 194 297 427 326 360 359 474 142 0 0 0 2,941 6,077 

Total Programs 52 54 64 57 43 43 88 70 31 0 0 0 502 376 
NOTE:  March / April / May 2020 - City of Richmond Closed March 13, 2020 until TBD for COVID19 Closure. 

Page 11 of 24 
 



 
PROGRAMS FY2020 
(CONTINUED) Jul-19 Aug-

19 
Sep-
19 

Oct-
19 

Nov-
19 

Dec-
19 

Jan-
20 

Feb-
20 

Mar-
20 

Apr-
20 

May-
20 

Jun-
20 

TOTAL 
FY20 

TOTAL 
FY19 

Ginter Park  
Adult Programs 20 25 32 23 15 12 25 38 19 0     209 267 

Adult Attend 170 276 396 397 196 118 246 428 162 0     2,389 2,651 
Young Adult Programs 2 2 2 1 2 3 1 3 0 0     16 6 

Young Adult Attend 41 12 10 5 10 15 5 4 0 0     102 85 
Juvenile Programs 10 15 3 7 4 3 7 7 0 0     56 129 

Juvenile Attend 181 169 17 98 45 74 85 21 0 0     690 1,537 
Total Attend 392 457 423 500 251 207 336 453 162 0 0 0 3,181 4,273 

Total Programs 32 42 37 31 21 18 33 48 19 0 0 0 281 395 
Hull Street  

Adult Programs 7 5 8 14 12 12 6 20 8 0     92 85 
Adult Attend 95 19 23 41 52 61 51 92 30 0     464 972 

Young Adult Programs 3 3 2 2 1 2 2 1 0 0     16 26 
Young Adult Attend 87 14 8 4 2 0 0 3 0 0     118 323 
Juvenile Programs 16 8 2 8 4 4 1 3 3 0     49 108 

Juvenile Attend 313 134 12 26 28 27 3 27 14 0     584 2,209 
Total Attend 495 167 43 71 82 88 54 122 44 0 0 0 1,166 3,504 

Total Programs 26 16 12 24 17 18 9 24 11 0 0 0 157 219 
Main  

Adult Programs 18 24 30 21 22 18 25 26 12 0     196 124 
Adult Attend 313 765 786 784 454 487 660 1,016 200 0     5,465 4,609 

Young Adult Programs 13 8 8 10 9 13 9 7 0 0     77 65 
Young Adult Attend 111 39 64 114 104 186 84 102 0 0     804 778 
Juvenile Programs 30 25 29 23 12 19 22 27 11 0     198 265 

Juvenile Attend 827 592 623 480 251 329 333 415 189 0     4,039 5,511 
Total Attend 1,251 1,396 1,473 1,378 809 1,002 1,077 1,533 389 0 0 0 10,308 10,898 

Total Programs 61 57 67 54 43 50 56 60 23 0 0 0 471 454 
NOTE:  March / April / May 2020 - City of Richmond Closed March 13, 2020 until TBD for COVID19 Closure. 

 

Page 12 of 24 
 



 
PROGRAMS FY2020 
(CONTINUED) Jul-19 Aug-

19 
Sep-
19 

Oct-
19 

Nov-
19 

Dec-
19 

Jan-
20 

Feb-
20 

Mar-
20 

Apr-
20 

May-
20 

Jun-
20 

TOTAL 
FY20 

TOTAL 
FY19 

North Avenue 
Adult Programs 46 38 10 27 8 13 15 29 5 0     191 319 

Adult Attend 285 210 122 140 75 55 49 72 38 0     1,046 2,903 
Young Adult Programs 2 0 6 5 2 0 1 3 0 0     19 54 

Young Adult Attend 18 0 57 21 20 0 4 21 0 0     141 348 
Juvenile Programs 11 8 0 10 8 9 6 9 3 0     64 280 

Juvenile Attend 273 246 0 84 22 291 73 153 59 0     1,201 5,075 
Total Attend 576 456 179 245 117 346 126 246 97 0 0 0 2,388 8,326 

Total Programs 59 46 16 42 18 22 22 41 8 0 0 0 274 653 
West End 

Adult Programs 11 10 9 12 7 7 11 9 5 0     81 144 
Adult Attend 121 87 64 101 46 50 91 76 60 0     696 1,041 

Young Adult Programs 1 1 1 0 1 1 1 2 0 0     8 12 
Young Adult Attend 9 5 5 0 5 6 3 5 0 0     38 50 
Juvenile Programs 10 17 14 9 5 4 6 6 1 0     72 205 

Juvenile Attend 174 248 188 45 33 36 163 62 2 0     951 3,605 
Total Attend 304 340 257 146 84 92 257 143 62 0 0 0 1,685 4,696 

Total Programs 22 28 24 21 13 12 18 17 6 0 0 0 161 590 
Westover Hills 

Adult Programs 18 23 16 23 24 15 22 28 14 0     183 214 
Adult Attend 424 429 219 434 506 125 310 514 206 0     3,167 3,598 

Young Adult Programs 3 2 1 1 2 0 1 0 1 0     11 17 
Young Adult Attend 59 66 9 11 11 0 0 0 5 0     161 139 
Juvenile Programs 22 18 10 20 11 11 17 15 7 0     131 254 

Juvenile Attend 396 535 449 717 304 176 364 486 256 0     3,683 4,606 
Total Attend 879 1,030 677 1,162 821 301 674 1,000 467 0 0 0 7,011 8,343 

Total Programs 43 43 27 44 37 26 40 43 22 0 0 0 325 485 
Grand Total Attend 5,053 4,607 3,700 4,374 3,128 2,913 3,545 4,671 1,685 0 0 0 33,676 55,095 

Grand Total Programs 343 331 300 311 243 260 342 358 154 0 0 0 2,642 4,312 

NOTE:  March / April / May 2020 - City of Richmond Closed March 13, 2020 until TBD for COVID19 Closure.  

  
Page 13 of 24 

 



 
Insert Computer Use FY20 

COMPUTER USE FY2020 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 TOTAL 

Belmont Workstation    1,175     1,255     1,219     1,251  1,041      972   1,189  1,116    507  0          9,725  
WIFI       963     1,047        931     1,045     787      802      949     968     535  102          8,129  

Broad Rock Workstation    2,131     2,080     1,995     1,952  1,353  1,512  1,813  1,853     843  0        15,532  
WIFI    903        826        770        784    448     595     739     860     381  84          6,390  

East End Workstation    1,968     2,168     1,819     1,736  1,310  1,388  1,643  1,591   695  0        14,318  
WIFI    1,236     1,281     1,068     1,100     877     867    880    948    500  153          8,910  

Ginter Park Workstation    1,617     1,418     1,506     1,533  1,109  1,130  1,358  1,313     616  0        11,600  
WIFI    1,229     1,173        936     1,032     708     829  1,015     952    519  139          8,532  

Hull Street Workstation    1,741     1,770     1,772     1,710  1,543  1,552  1,652  1,749     793  0        14,282  
WIFI    1,035        889        905     1,092     921     818     855     944     600  106          8,165  

Main Workstation    4,023     3,970     3,808     3,898     2,956     2,896     3,370     3,079     1,385  0        29,385  
Childrens Workstation       226        304        132        159        117         72         78        115         24  0          1,227  

WIFI    3,921     4,529     3,597     4,034     3,033     3,715     4,085     4,068     2,275  550        33,807  
North Avenue Workstation    1,346     1,448     1,287     1,357     1,281     1,101     1,226     1,189        650  0        10,885  

WIFI       928        856        824        934        712        841     1,131     1,129        705  225          8,285  
West End Workstation       754        834        825        768        628        675        867        831        353  0          6,535  

WIFI       568        476        655        893        581        664        643        604        294  63          5,441  
Westover Hills Workstation    1,520     1,497     1,282     1,345     1,106     1,111     1,349     1,291        553  0        11,054  

WIFI       833        853        705        824        619        627        511        700        495  78          6,245  
TOTALS FY20:  28,117   28,674   26,036   27,447   21,130   22,167   25,353   25,300  12,723  1500                218,447  
TOTALS FY19: 21,141   23,182  20,857  28,103  23,493  22,565  27,068  24,764  28,491  26,105  28,577  26,512  300,859 
TOTALS FY18: 15,815  21,725  22,930  24,159  20,415  10,066  22,675  23,448  21,326  22,134  22,591  20,439  247,723  

NOTE:  March / April / May 2020 - City of Richmond Closed March 13, 2020 until TBD for COVID19 Closure.  
 
  

Page 14 of 24 
 



 
Technical Services – Items by Location 

TECHNICAL SERVICES - ITEMS BY LOCATION 

FY2020 Belmont Broad 
Rock 

East 
End 

Ginter 
Park 

Hull 
Street MAIN North 

Avenue 
West 
End 

Westover 
Hills OverDrive 

Jul-19 215  148  147  172  117  379  119  206  213  -    
Aug-19 359  260  201  268  145  572  160  409  347  66  
Sep-19 318  205  203  312  164  565  168  325  330  162  
Oct-19 396  224  251  274  177  696  195  427  410  54  
Nov-19 276  165  177  212  128  472  132  320  306  76  
Dec-19 302  165  195  224  124  580  147  361  319  114  
Jan-20 289  154  174  229  124  499  145  359  264  75  
Feb-20 171  123  111  114  82  331  97  192  198  82  
Mar-20 233  160  146  178  123  345  145  266  212  185  
Apr-20 90  38  46  55  28  145  35  97  80  1,210  
May-20                     
Jun-20                     

Branch Total FY20: 2,649  1,642  1,651  2,038  1,212  4,584  1,343  2,962  2,679  2,024  
Branch Total FY19: 3,525  1,877  2,007  2,450  1,353  6,247  1,963  4,088  3,667  1,320  
Average: 265  164  165  204  121  458  134  296  268  202  

NOTE:  March / April / May - City of Richmond Closed March 13, 2020 until TBD for COVID19 Closure.  
 
New Patron Cards 

NEW PATRON CARDS 
FY2020 JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN Total 
Belmont    138     187     114     101       78       78     109       95       41  0          941  
Broad Rock    129     152     159     137       93       94       96     114       64  0       1,038  
East End    120     114     124     107       67       67       91       97       31  0          818  
Ginter Park      96       79       62       63       60       51       76       73       23  0          583  
Hull Street    125     130     140       84       90       88     116     113       59  0          945  
Main    383     411     370     282     360     253     360     241     115  0       2,775  
North Avenue    160     128     169       96       70       64       97       96       36  0          916  
West End    152     125     119       69       92       64     118       73       29  0          841  
Westover Hills    153     120     137       95       81       85     129     108       38  0          946  
Online Reg E-Card    162     229     255     209     167     210     352     236     800  611       3,231  

Total FY20: 1,618  1,675  1,649  1,243  1,158  1,054  1,544  1,246  1,236     611        -          -    13,034  
Total FY19: 1,692  1,722  1,623  1,328  1,117     911  1,321  1,150  1,321  1,212  1,320  1,509  16,226  
April 2020 - Due to the COVID-19 Closure, staff was unable to remove registrations that did not meet  

policy requirements in the Online Reg E-Card. 

Page 15 of 24 
 



 
Insert Operations Budget 

 
  

Page 16 of 24 
 



 
Insert Monthly Report 
 

 
 
  

Page 17 of 24 
 



 
Insert Pending Gifts Report 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  

Page 18 of 24 
 



 
Handout: RPL DRAFT Return to Work Plan 

 
Return to Work-Richmond Public Library-DRAFT 

As Richmond Public Library (RPL) prepares for the return to work of all employees, several guidelines are being put in 
effect for the health and safety of everyone.  RPL has outlined some of the steps and measures to best decrease the 
spread of COVID-19 while providing service to city residents.  Our goal is to reduce transmission among employees, 
maintain healthy business operations, and maintain a healthy work environment. RPL is committed to supporting our team 
and making sure all employees have access to the most important up to date CDC guidance and best practices ranging 
from proper and regular hand washing to staying at home if an employee is sick. With these concerns in mind all library 
locations have been closed since March 13, 2020.  

We have divided the reopening plan into three phases based on various conditions requiring modifications to how the 
library operates daily.  

Virginia Restrictions Conditions Services Modifications 

Stay at Home Order: 
March 13-May 29 

(All staff stay at 
home and essential 
personnel continue 
daily 
communications 
and work) 

Only Essential 
Businesses 
Open.  Library closed. 

• Library closes to public 

• Online resources and 
services offered 

  

• Online resources increased 

• Digital content begins (storytimes, 
reading buddies, online book 
clubs, etc.) 

• Launch Ask-a-librarian reference 
service 

• Weekly newsletter 

• Staff teleworking and completing 
weekly Professional Development 
(PD) Training 

Phase 1: Safer at 
Home 

June 1-TBD 

(All staff return to 
assigned location 
on a block 
scheduling model) 

After a minimum of 14 
consecutive days with a 
downward trend in 
cases; Estimated to be 
June 1. 

• Materials can be returned 

• Placing and filling holds 
will resume (PHONE 
notifications only, email 
notifications stay off in 
this phase) 

• Interlibrary loan remains 
suspended 

• Curbside pickup service 
begins for patrons 

• No public access to the 
building 

• Increased cleaning and use of 
disinfecting supplies 

• Implement use of procured PPE 

• All holds MUST be called and 
curbside protocol explained to 
patrons 

• Maintain staff distancing (rotating 
block scheduling to ensure only 
2-3 employees in building at a 
time—Main will be different) 

• Extended due date remains in 
place until July 1 

• Implement Zero contact Curbside 
pickup procedures 

• Implement returns procedure 
(quarantining items returned for 
72 hours) 

Page 19 of 24 
 



 
Phase 2: 

TBD 

(All staff report to 
assigned location 
according to staff 
schedules) 

Gatherings of 50 or 
more; library can open 
doors to the public but 
social distancing 
protocol will be 
required.  Estimated to 
be between at least 2-4 
weeks after Phase 1 
(Tentatively July 1). 

• Public Access to the 
building can resume with 
limited capacity (no more 
than 20 people in the 
building at one time and 
masks worn by patrons 
highly recommended) 

• Programming does not 
resume 

• Limited Computer 
services resume 

• Notary services do not 
resume 

• Fax services do not 
resume 

• Regular 2 week loan 
period due dates resume 

• Staff continue to practice social 
distancing and wear procured 
PPE 

• Furniture is moved to adhere to 
social distancing protocol (Excess 
furniture i.e., chairs moved to 
meeting rooms) 

• At least every other computer 
turned off and extra 
chairs/keyboards removed 
(should measure 6 feet 
apart).  Time limited to 1 hour 
use.  Reservations available. 
Patrons use computers at their 
own risk and are encouraged to 
practice safe hygiene 

• Self-checkout encouraged 

• Patrons can browse shelves while 
practicing social distancing (some 
branches may want to limit the 
direction of travel down the aisles) 

• Newspapers and Magazines can 
be made available to patrons on a 
branch by branch basis 
depending on demand and safety 
concerns/measures taken 

• All staff report to branch 
according to their assigned 
schedules 

  

Phase 3: 

TBD 

No evidence of a 
rebound in 
cases.  Date TBD 

TBD TBD 

 

  

Page 20 of 24 
 



 
Reduced Library Operating Hours during Phase 1 

• M-F 9am-5pm (10am-5pm for the public); Sat. 12-5pm (1-5pm for the public) 30-minute Lunch Break. 
• Managers will adjust schedule as needed. 

Cleaning and Sanitization 
• Nutech will visit the branches for cleaning duties twice a day. 
• Returned items will be quarantined for 72 hours (gloves will be worn to remove items from the book drop). 
• Disinfecting wipes should be in staff restrooms and staff should wipe down sink handles and door knobs 

after using facilities. 
• PPE: Protective masks, antiseptic and alcohol wipes, hand sanitizer and disposable protective gloves will 

be available at all locations for staff. 
• Soap and wipes should be available in shared spaces and good hand hygiene is encouraged.  Place 

posters that encourage hand hygiene to help stop the spread at the entrance to your workplace and in 
other workplace areas where they are likely to be seen. 

Staff Health 
• We are asking all staff to take their temperature daily before coming into work. If your temperature is over 

100 degrees the CDC recommends you stay home and self-isolate under the following conditions: 
o At least three days have passed for the resolution of fever without the use of fever reducing 

medication. 
o The improvement of respiratory symptoms such as coughing and shortness of breath. 
o And at least seven days have passed since symptoms have appeared. 
o If we learn that an employee is sick with the Covid-19 illness they must stay home to quarantine for 

14 days and seek medical assistance.  This will be covered without penalty using the Covid-19 sick 
leave category for up to 80 hours for full-time employees and 40 hours for part-time employees. 
The same rule will apply for Covid-19 sick leave if a direct/immediate family member is diagnosed 
with covid-19 illness. 

• If you cannot check your temperature at home, contactless thermometers will be provided at each location 
for you to use upon arrival to work. 

• To comply with CDC guidelines you must maintain a distance of six feet from other workers. Your branch 
manager will be responsible in the assignment of work area.  (This may include adult area, teen area, 
children’s area, circulation desk, work room, manager’s office, meeting room or any designated work 
space, etc.) 

• All housekeeping and security personnel (where applicable) will follow the same recommended CDC 
guidelines. 
o Job duties may vary at this time and could include: Weeding, shelving, shelf reading, inventory, 

Sirsi training, providing telephone reference, processing materials, filing, program creation and 
development, displays, cleaning and dusting shelves, disinfecting keyboards and computer screens 
and other designated tasks. 

• REMEMBER: Cover your mouth and nose with a tissue when you cough or sneeze or use the inside of 
your elbow. Throw used tissues in the trash and immediately wash hands with soap and water for at least 
20 seconds. If soap and water are not available, use hand sanitizer containing at least 60% alcohol. Avoid 
touching your eyes, nose, and mouth with unwashed hands. 

• It is recommended that you routinely clean and disinfect all frequently touched surfaces in the workplace, 
such as workstations, keyboards, telephones, handrails, and doorknobs using the provided cleaning 

supplies.  
  

Page 21 of 24 
 

https://www.cdc.gov/handwashing/materials.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/communication/factsheets.html


 

Curbside Pickup Procedures for Patrons 
(June 3 Tentative Start Date) 

 

Procedures for Zero Contact Materials Pickup While RPL is Closed 
  

1. Place your hold requests for any circulating material through the online catalog or telephone. Pickup times are: 
Monday-Friday 10am-5pm and Saturday 1-5pm.  Patrons with temporary e-cards are not able to place 
holds.  You will still have access to our entire online collections and can get your permanent card when the 
libraries re-open to the public. 

2. Library Staff on duty will fill the requests to the best of their ability and notify you when items are available for 
pickup.  PLEASE do not come to the library until you have been contacted by phone or email that they are 
available for pickup. 

3. When you come to pick up your materials, you will need to bring a cell phone and your Library Card Number.  If 
you do not have your library account number (it was required when you placed the hold), you can call or contact 
us through Ask-A-Librarian Chat feature on the website to acquire your account number before you come to pick 
up items. 

4. Upon arrival to the library, you will pull up to designated area, put your vehicle in park, and call the library phone 
number to let them know you are ready to pick up.  When you call, the library employee will ask for your library 
card number and verify how many items you have to pick up.  If there are any additional instructions at a library 
location, please follow those instructions. If you are on foot and do not have a vehicle, please call the phone 
number for the location and receive specific pickup instructions. 

5. Please WAIT in your vehicle while library staff locate and checkout your materials.  We will place your order on a 
designated table outside the library wearing latex gloves and other personal protective equipment. To maintain 
social distancing protocol and zero contact pickup, please wait for the library staff member to leave the table and 
re-enter the library and then you may safely exit your vehicle and pickup your order. 

6. We have not cleaned or sanitized any library materials, but we are only checking out items that have been 
quarantined for a minimum of 72 hours.  If you wish, you can quarantine them (in your vehicle or at home) for an 
extended period of time before using. 

7. All Richmond Public Library materials that are checked out during this closing period, will have an extended due 
date and will NOT accrue any overdue fines.  

8. At this time, all items returned to the library must be returned in the outside bookdrops at library locations.   
 
If you have any questions about the procedure, please call your library branch for answers or use the online chat 
feature, Ask-a-Librarian, available on our website. 
 
We appreciate all your patience, understanding and cooperation during this time. We are doing everything we 
can to provide a safe and healthy environment for you, our team, and our community.  

 

  

  

  
  
  
  

Page 22 of 24 
 

https://rcpl.sirsi.net/uhtbin/cgisirsi/?ps=B7uxIJFngY/MAIN/137550033/60/1180/X
https://rvalibrary.org/contact-us/%23directory
https://rvalibrary.org/contact-us/%23directory
https://chat.mosio.com/par/chat/new_chat/mb3505
https://rvalibrary.org/about/locations/
https://chat.mosio.com/par/chat/new_chat/mb3505
https://rvalibrary.org/about/locations/


Curbside Pickup Procedures for Staff
Procedures for Phase 1 Materials Pickup and Return 

(Phase 1 Begins 3 Days After Employees Return to Branch Locations: Tentatively June 3) 

Patrons may submit hold requests for any circulating material through the online catalog or telephone. If by phone, please 
place holds for patrons as usual in Workflows.  Patrons with temporary e-cards cannot place holds on materials.  They 
can get their permanent cards when the libraries re-open to the public. 

1. Library Staff on duty will fill the requests (via the holds list) to the best of their ability and notify patrons when items
are available for pickup (E-mail or phone call as usual).  For patrons who were previously notified of holds
availability (items on holds shelf prior to closure), those patrons should be contacted by phone of their availability
and the procedures to pick items up.  In order to streamline the procedure, all patron requests should be done
online or on the phone prior to pickup.  Patrons should not make additional requests at the time of pickup.

2. Patrons will need to pick up materials during the specifically designated times: Monday-Friday 10am-5pm and
Saturday 1-5pm.  There must be a minimum of two employees working during these scheduled pickup times.

3. Upon arrival to the library, patrons will pull up to designated area, put their vehicle in park, and call the library
branch phone number to let staff know they are ready to pick up.  If patrons are on foot (without a vehicle), please
follow the procedure as explained by your location’s manager. When they call—they should recite the library card
number they placed the hold with so you can retrieve their items and check them out in Workflows.  Please check
that they have an extended due date July 1, 2020.  Additionally, please verify how many items you are checking
out to them.  Be sure to explain the remaining pickup procedure steps to them over the phone (see Step 5).

4. Patrons are supposed to wait in their vehicles while library staff locate and checkout their materials.  Staff should
wear the proper Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) available (gloves and masks), place their checked out
materials with receipt visible on a designated table outside the library.   To maintain social distancing protocol and
zero contact pickup, please leave the materials on the table and re-enter the library.  Once you have done so,
patrons should safely exit their vehicle, pickup their order, and leave.

5. We are NOT cleaning or sanitizing any library materials, but we are only circulating items that have been
quarantined for a minimum of 2 hours in a designated area.

6. All Richmond Public Library materials that are checked out during this closing period, will have an extended due
date and will NOT accrue any overdue fines.

7. At this time, the library is ONLY allowing any items to be returned to the external bookdrops.
 Bookdrop will be emptied once a day.
 Staff will wear available PPE (gloves and masks) when removing items from the bookdrop.  Items will go

directly onto a book cart or other portable bin and be taken directly to the designated quarantine area
(most likely your meeting room) to sit for 72 hours.

 The bin or cart or table with the newly quarantined items must have the date (three days from placement)
that the items can return to shelves clearly indicated.  This must be done each day with a new “safe date”
for each day’s returns.

 As more items are added to the quarantined area, it is important to NOT touch previously quarantined
items until their “safe date” and only handle the materials with PPE (gloves and masks).

 Once items reach their “safe date,” they can be taken to a workstation to be discharged in
workflows.  Use the bookdrop return function and backdate to the original return date (72 hours prior).

 At that point, those discharged items can be shelved or trapped for existing holds.
 This process should be repeated daily until quarantine restrictions are lifted.

If you have any questions about the procedure, please contact your branch manager.  We appreciate all your 
patience, understanding and cooperation during this time. We know that the community has been eager to 
resume using library services, but it is extremely important that we do everything we can to keep staff safe and 
healthy during this time.  Zero Contact pick-up is a protocol set for success in both endeavors. 

Page 23 of 24 

https://rcpl.sirsi.net/uhtbin/cgisirsi/?ps=B7uxIJFngY/MAIN/137550033/60/1180/X
https://rvalibrary.org/contact-us/%23directory


Materials Needed for Phase 1: 

• Available PPE: Masks, Disposable Gloves

• Sanitizing Supplies: Wipes, spray, hand sanitizer

• Books by Mail: Stamps.com or meter?   Order mailers. Procedures. Policies. Request forms.

• Outdoors Supplies: Traffic Cones, chalk, Barricade Tape, Bags, Outdoor Table & Tent (if uncovered area)

• Door/Window Sign:  The library will remain closed to the public until further notice.  Curbside service available
Monday-Friday 10am-5pm.  Saturdays 1pm-4pm. Please visit www.rvalibrary.org or call your local branch for
more information.

• Donations sign:  Donations cannot be accepted at this time.  Any donated books will be put in the trash regardless
of condition until further notice.

• Public Bathrooms sign:  These restrooms are only cleaned twice a day.  No janitorial staff on-site.

• Staff Restrooms:  Please remember to wash your hands for at least 20 seconds.  As a courtesy, please use the
provided disinfecting spray/wipes to clean flusher, sink handles, doorknobs etc. after you use the facilities.

• Self-Checkout Instructions sign?

• Signs for Branch Locations with Drive-up Curbside Pickup:

Richmond Public Library
Curbside Pickup Hours:

10-5pm Monday-Friday
Saturday 1-5pm

Please Stay in your Vehicle! 
Call: 804-646-xxxx

For pickup instructions

Signs for Branch Locations with Walk-up Curbside Pickup: 
Richmond Public Library
Curbside Pickup Hours:

10-5pm Monday-Friday
Saturday 1-5pm

Please stay behind this line! 
Call: 804-646-xxxx

For pickup instructions

Page 24 of 24 

http://www.rvalibrary.org/


C I T Y   O F   R I C H M O N D 
      C I T Y    A U D I T O R 

900 EAST BROAD STREET, ROOM 806  R I C H M O N D, VA  23219  804.646.5616  FAX 804.646.2230  
www.RICHMONDGOV.COM 

DATE: May 21, 2020 

TO: Ms. Lenora Reid  
Acting Chief Administrative Officer 

FROM: Louis Lassiter      LL 
City Auditor 

SUBJECT: Citywide 
Special Revenue Funds audit 

The City Auditor’s Office has completed the Citywide Special Revenue Funds 
audit and the final report is attached. 

We would like to thank the Administration staff for their cooperation and 
assistance during this audit. 

Attachment 

cc: The Richmond Audit Committee 
The Richmond City Council 
Ms. Sharon Ebert, DCAO of Economic Development 
Mr. Reginald Gordon, DCAO of Human Services 
Mr. Scott Firestine, Director of Richmond Public Library 



 

                                                                                               Richmond                            
                                                           CITY AUDITOR 

 
 

Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Intentionally left blank 
 



 

Audit Report# 2020-13 
 Citywide - Special Revenue Funds Audit 

May 21, 2020

Audit Report Staff 
Lou Lassiter, City Auditor 
Lily Hernandez, Deputy City Auditor 
W. Bret Lewis, Lead Auditor 
Toni Noel, Auditor 

Executive Summary  i 
      Background, Objectives, Scope, Methodology  1 

Findings and Recommendations 5 
Excess Funds Table Appendix A 

Management Responses   Appendix B 

         City of 

RICHMOND 
  Office of the City Auditor 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
BACKGROUND
, OBJECTIVES, 
SCOPE, 
METHODOLO
GY, 
MANAGEMEN
T 
RESPONSIBILIT
Y and 
INTERNAL 
CONTROLS 

May 2020 

Highlights 
Audit Report to the Audit 

Committee, City Council, and the 
Administration  

Why We Did This Audit 

The Office of the City Auditor 
conducted this audit as part of the 
FY20 audit plan approved by the Audit 
Committee. The main objective for 
this audit was to evaluate the 
controls, compliance and monitoring 
of Special Revenue Funds.  

What We Recommend  

Chief Administrative Officer 
• Develop and implement formal 

policies and procedures to 
provide guidance on creating, 
monitoring and closing Special 
Revenue Fund accounts. 

Director of Finance: 
• Remove the identified accounts 

from the Special Revenue Fund 
accounts and move them to 
their respective cost centers in 
the Grants Module, General 
Fund or Enterprise Fund and 
work with the Budget 
Department to request any 
budget adjustments that may 
require legislative approval. 

Communications Director: 
• Develop and implement formal 

procedures to ensure 
compliance with the PEG 
franchise agreements/Cable 
Ordinance. 

• Work with the Budget 
Department to obtain legislative 
approval to appropriate 
$1,229,840 from other sources, 
to recover the funds used for 
unallowable PEG expenditures.  

• Ensure expenses which occurred 
subsequent to December 31, 
2019 for website re-design and 
web services, and 31% of 
production studio/office 
renovation cost be reclassified 
from or not charged to the PEG 
account. 

Other recommendations to improve 
internal controls are included in the 
report. 

 

Citywide Special Revenue Funds Audit 

Background - In the City of Richmond, Special Revenue Funds are created to account for 
revenues appropriated by City Council for a specific purpose either during the adoption of 
the Fiscal Plan or an approved ordinance.  These funds are primarily derived from user fees, 
assessments, grants, and taxes. As of June 30, 2019 the City had 95 Special Revenue Fund 
accounts.   

Commendation – Except for the Public, Educational, and Governmental Fund, all 
expenditures tested were allowable.   

Needs Improvement 
Finding #1 – Excessive Special Revenue Fund Accounts - Only 34 of the 95 accounts met the 
GASB guidelines.  In FY19, forty Special Revenue Fund accounts had neither revenues nor 
expenditures and twenty-three of those did not have either a beginning or ending balance.  
This resulted in approximately $2 Million in the Special Revenue Fund accounts that should 
have been included in the General Fund.     
Finding #2 – Incorrect Entry – While reviewing the Special Revenue Fund accounts, it was 
noted that during FY19, a $1,084,100.99 check for Utility Sales Tax was erroneously 
recorded in a Special Revenue Fund account instead of the General Fund.  
Finding #3 - Public, Educational, and Governmental (PEG) – As of 12/31/19, expenditures of 
$1,229,840 were not allowable including a citywide website redesign, new offices and other 
miscellaneous expenditures. Additionally, revenues were not always deposited timely and 
recorded to the PEG account.  Three checks totaling $154,092 were deposited at least 
three months after the check issuance.    
Finding #4 – Affordable Housing Trust Fund –   Interest revenues were not deposited  and 
recorded in the account in a timely manner.  Checks dated back to 2015 through 2018 were 
not deposited and had to be replaced by the issuer in 2019.  
Finding #5–Law Library – Expenditures were allowable; however, in FY19 they exceeded 
revenues by $118,180. Revenues were not always recorded in the account.  A lump-sum of 
$1,290,277.04 was coded to the account in FY18 to reclassify the revenues received from 
FY14 through FY17.  As of June 30, 2019, the account was in a deficit of $324,212.   
Finding #6–Permits & Inspections Technology Renewal Fee – The 5% permit fee allocation to 
the Technology Renewal account was under allocated by $47,388 during FY19.  The account 
was further understated by $2,000 due to a keying error.   
Finding #7–Special District Assessments – Rehabilitation exemptions of $557,895 were 
erroneously applied against Special District charges.  This has been corrected by Finance. 
Staff did not have formal guidance for handling rehabilitation exemptions.   

Finding #8–Rapid Transit Pulse  Project – This project is complete; however, the account had 
a deficit of $119,639.  Applicable revenues were not applied to the account and was not 
closed upon completion of the project.     

Finding #9–DJS Supervision Fees – The account had a deficit of $21,933 mainly due to 
understated deposits in prior years and an unknown transfer of $49,479.  Staff were not 
aware of these errors as a reconciliation of the account had not been performed.  

Finding #10–Public Library Foundation – The account had a deficit of $25,047 due to 
recording revenues of $33,500 to a different account.  Staff were not aware of the activities 
in the account as they had not been trained on the reporting capabilities in RAPIDS. 

Finding #11–Delinquent Tax Sales Special Revenue Fund – Staff follow State Code for 
guidance; however, the Code is vague and does not specifically identify which expenditures 
are allowable.  The City Attorney’s Office is currently developing procedures to provide 
guidance to their staff.    

Management concurred with 19 of 19 recommendations.  We appreciate the cooperation 
received from management and staff while conducting this audit.   
         i 



Richmond City Auditor’s Report #2020-13 
Citywide  
Special Revenue Funds  
May 21, 2020 

 

Page 1 of 20 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND, OBJECTIVES, SCOPE, METHODOLOGY, 
MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY and INTERNAL CONTROLS 

This audit was conducted in accordance with the Generally Accepted Government Auditing 

Standards promulgated by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those Standards 

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain sufficient, appropriate evidence to provide 

a reasonable basis for our findings and conclusions based on the audit objectives. We believe 

that the evidence obtained provides a reasonable basis for our findings and conclusions based 

on the audit objectives. 

BACKGROUND 
 

Overview: 

In the City of Richmond, Special Revenue Funds are created to account for revenues 

appropriated by City Council for a specific purpose either during the adoption of the Fiscal Plan 

or an approved ordinance.  These funds are primarily derived from user fees, assessments, 

grants, and taxes: 

The FY19 Special Revenue Funds funding sources were as follows:    

 

Source: 2019-2020 Biennial Fiscal Plan 



Richmond City Auditor’s Report #2020-13 
Citywide  
Special Revenue Funds  
May 21, 2020 

 

Page 2 of 20 
 

 
 

The City had 95 Special Revenue Fund Accounts as of June 30, 2019.  The following table depicts 

the activities for each account during FY19: 

     

Special Funds Process: 

The Special Revenue Fund process is a coordinated effort between the requesting departments, 
the Finance Department and the Budget Office.  The process to establish, monitor, and closeout 
a Special Revenue Fund account is depicted as follow: 

Department No. of 
Special 
Funds 

Funds in 
Deficit 

Funds 
Transferred 
to Close-out 

Balance 

Funds with 
Activities  

Funds 
with 

Balance 
Without 
Activity 

Funds 
Without 
Balance 

or  
Activity 

Public Works 17 1  11  5 
Emergency 
Communications 

9   4  5 

Economic & Community 
Development 

9 1 2 6   

Library 8 3  3 1 1 
Judiciary 8   6  2 
Parks and Rec. 7   4 1 2 
Justice Services 5 1  2  2 
Police  5   2 2 1 
Finance 5   1 3 1 
Human Services 5    5  
Fire & EMS 3   1 2  
City Attorney 2 1  1   
City Council 1    1  
Mayor's Office  1   1   
Social Services 1   1   
Planning & Development 1   1   
Sheriff’s Office 1    1  
Animal Care & Control 1   1   
CAO’s Office 1   1   
Other Miscellaneous 5    1 4 

Total 95 7 2 46 17 23 



Richmond City Auditor’s Report #2020-13 
Citywide  
Special Revenue Funds  
May 21, 2020 

 

Page 3 of 20 
 

 
 

The requesting 
department initiates 

the request by 
submitting required 

paperwork. 

→ 

Finance Department 
receives and reviews 

completed paperwork 
to setup a new special 

fund account.   

→ 
Finance sends to the 

Budget Office for 
final approval in 

RAPIDS.   

→ Budget baselines 
the accounts. 

      ↓ 

 

 

Finance closes the 
account as deemed 

necessary. 
← 

Finance monitors 
the accounts 

monthly and sends 
a report of all 

expenditures to the 
departments. 

← 
Finance notifies the 

requesting 
department. 

 

OBJECTIVES  

The objectives for this audit were to:  

• Evaluate the controls, compliance and monitoring of Special Revenue Fund accounts and 

determine if they met Government Accounting Standards requirements.  

• Determine if any Special Revenue Funds were in structural deficits and if efficiencies 

could be achieved by reducing the number of special funds. 

SCOPE 

The scope of this audit covered Special Revenue Funds for FY19 and the current environment.  

The scope for one of the accounts tested, the Programming, Educational, and Government (PEG) 

Fund, covered FY18 and FY19, as well as the six months ended December 31, 2019. 

METHODOLOGY  

The auditors performed the following procedures to complete this audit: 

• Interviewed staff; 

• Reviewed and evaluated relevant City of Richmond policies and procedures for 

compliance; 

• Benchmarked against other Virginia localities; 



Richmond City Auditor’s Report #2020-13 
Citywide  
Special Revenue Funds  
May 21, 2020 

 

Page 4 of 20 
 

 
 

• Reviewed revenues and expenditures for selected  Special Revenue Fund accounts; 

• Reviewed GASB Statements number 34 and 54; 

• Reviewed City Ordinances, City Code, and State Code for Special Revenue Funds; and  

• Performed other tests, as deemed necessary. 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY 

City of Richmond management is responsible for ensuring resources are managed properly and 

used in compliance with laws and regulations; programs are achieving their objectives; and 

services are being provided efficiently, effectively, and economically. 

INTERNAL CONTROLS 

According to the Government Auditing Standards, internal control, in the broadest sense, 

encompasses the agency’s plan, policies, procedures, methods, and processes adopted by 

management to meet its mission, goals, and objectives. Internal control includes the processes 

for planning, organizing, directing, and controlling program operations. It also includes systems 

for measuring, reporting, and monitoring program performance. An effective control structure is 

one that provides reasonable assurance regarding: 

• Efficiency and effectiveness of operations; 

• Accurate financial reporting; and 

• Compliance with laws and regulations. 

Based on the audit test work, the auditors concluded the internal controls over the Special 

Revenue Funds Process are significantly weak and need improvements.  The following are some 

of the weaknesses noted: 

• Policies and procedures to guide staff through the Special Revenue Fund process did not 
exist. 

• Revenues were not always tracked and managed and/or erroneously coded to incorrect 
accounts. 



Richmond City Auditor’s Report #2020-13 
Citywide  
Special Revenue Funds  
May 21, 2020 

 

Page 5 of 20 
 

 
 

• Accounts that did not meet the Special Revenue Fund guidelines were recorded as such. 

• Unallowable expenditures. 

• Untimely deposits of revenues received.  

These internal control weaknesses are discussed throughout this report.  

FINDINGS and RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

What Works Well 

Expenditures  

Except for the Public, Educational, and Governmental Fund (PEG), all expenditures tested were 

allowable. 

What Needs Improvement 

Finding #1 – Excessive Special Revenue Fund Accounts 

As of June 30, 2019, the City of Richmond had 95 Special Revenue Fund accounts.  The auditors 

reviewed the 95 accounts to determine whether they met the General Accounting Standards 

Board (GASB), guidelines.  According to GASB, Statement No. 54, “Special revenue funds are 

used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or 

committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects.”  

 

The auditors noted only 34 of the 95 Accounts met the GASB guidelines.  The excessive Special 

Revenue Fund accounts were mainly due to not having policies and procedures to guide staff 

through requesting, creating, monitoring and closing out the accounts. GASB Statement #34 

states governments should establish only the minimum number of funds necessary to operate 

legally because unnecessary funds result in inefficient financial administration. Governments 



Richmond City Auditor’s Report #2020-13 
Citywide  
Special Revenue Funds  
May 21, 2020 

 

Page 6 of 20 
 

 
 

hould no longer report the special revenue fund and transfer the remaining revenues to the 

general fund, if the majority of the revenue source is no longer restricted.   

Of the 95 Special Revenue Fund accounts, the auditors noted the following: 

• 34 -  met the Special Revenue Fund guidelines 

• 37 - Inactive, miscoded or errors 

• 12 – Grants  

• 12 -  Not Special Revenue Funds 

 
The auditors also noted accounts that became dormant/inactive were not removed.  In FY19, 

forty Special Revenue Fund accounts had neither revenues nor expenditures and twenty-three of 

those did not have either a beginning or ending balance.  There were approximately $2 Million in 

the Special Revenue Fund accounts that should have been included in the General Fund. (See 

Appendix A for summary)   

 

The auditors benchmarked other Virginia localities to compare the number of Special Revenue 

Fund accounts in the City of Richmond with the number in those localities.  In comparison, the 

City of Richmond has almost four times the number of accounts as the next closest locality as 

depicted on the following table:   

 

Locality # of Special 
Funds 

Richmond 95 
Henrico 24 
Virginia Beach 18 
Chesterfield  4 
Roanoke 8 

Source: prepared by auditor  

 

 

 



Richmond City Auditor’s Report #2020-13 
Citywide  
Special Revenue Funds  
May 21, 2020 

 

Page 7 of 20 
 

 
 

Recommendations: 

1. We recommend the Chief Administrative Officer develop and implement formal policies and 
procedures to provide guidance on creating, monitoring and closing Special Revenue Fund 
accounts. 

2. We recommend the Director of Finance remove the identified accounts from the Special 
Revenue Fund accounts and move them to their respective cost centers in the Grants 
Module, General Fund or Enterprise Fund and work with the Budget Department to request 
any budget adjustments that may require legislative approval. 

 

Finding #2 – Incorrect Entry 

While reviewing the Special Revenue Fund accounts, it was noted that during FY19, a 

$1,084,100.99 check for Utility Sales Tax was erroneously recorded in a Special Revenue Fund 

account instead of the General Fund. The staff who prepared the deposit form coded the 

revenues to an incorrect accounting code.  

 
According to management, Finance staff perform quarterly projections of citywide general fund 

revenues.  They also perform some reviews and look for major variances during the preparation 

of the monthly financial reporting.  The Finance Director identified the discrepancy in a year-end 

review of actual revenues during August of 2019 and asked staff to research this matter along 

with others.  However, this had not been researched and corrected.   As a result, the FY19 

General Fund revenues were understated by $1,084,100.99.  Prior to closing this audit, Finance 

staff moved the funds to the General Fund. 

 
Recommendation: 

3. We recommend the Director of Finance assign a specific staff person to be responsible for 
follow-up of all material General Fund revenue variances at the end of each quarter. 

Revenues and Expenditures 
The auditors reviewed five Special Revenue Fund Accounts to determine whether expenditures 

were allowable based on their requirements. The auditors also reviewed the revenues coded to 

the selected accounts and tested for completeness. 



Richmond City Auditor’s Report #2020-13 
Citywide  
Special Revenue Funds  
May 21, 2020 

 

Page 8 of 20 
 

 
 

Finding #3 – Public, Educational, and Governmental (PEG) 

The Code of Virginia §15.2-2108.22 requires a cable operator to pay a recurring fee, which is 

referred to as the PEG Capital Fee, including institutional networks “to support the capital costs 

of public, educational, and governmental channel facilities.”  Additionally, according to Cable 

Ordinance 2007-116-240, “The Franchisee shall pay to the City a recurring fee to be called the 

“PEG Capital Fee” to support the capital costs of PEG facilities, including institutional networks.” 

 

Expenses 

The auditors reviewed 100% of the PEG expenditures during FY18 and FY19, as well as the six 

months ended December 31, 2019.  The expenditures during this period totaled $1,811,777.  

The auditors noted $1,229,840 of these expenditures were not allowable as follows: 

 

Citywide website re-design: 

100% of the expenditures ($1,070,340) for the City’s website re-design were not allowable as 

these expenditures did not “support capital costs of PEG facilities” or were “incurred in or 

associated with the construction of PEG access facilities”. The new website has been delayed in 

implementation and at this time management has indicated the website should go live in the 

summer of 2020. 

 

Production studio/office renovation:  
 
31% of the expenditures ($156,957) were not allowable.  The Office of the Press Secretary (OPS) 

contracted a vendor to renovate approximately 2,840 square feet of interior space in City Hall.  

The project’s floor plan included a production studio, dressing room, kitchen, equipment room, 

reception area, and four offices.  The project floor plan is depicted as follows: 



Richmond City Auditor’s Report #2020-13 
Citywide  
Special Revenue Funds  
May 21, 2020 

 

Page 9 of 20 
 

 
 

 

The auditors obtained the square footage assigned to the production studio, which included a 

dressing room, equipment room, and a reception area.  Based on the floor plan, 31% of the 

square footage were non-production studio related and therefore not allowable. Additional 

expenses occurred after December 31, 2019 which are also were not allowable. 

 
Other Miscellaneous Expenditures: 
 
OPS also paid $2,543 in other miscellaneous non-allowable expenditures.   

 

Although PEG funds are restricted, OPS did not have a formal process to monitor PEG 

expenditures to ensure compliance with the franchise agreements/Cable Ordinance. 

Revenues 

According to the Cable Franchise Ordinance, the Franchisee must submit an annual report that 

describes the cable services begun or dropped, the total number of cable subscribers and the 



Richmond City Auditor’s Report #2020-13 
Citywide  
Special Revenue Funds  
May 21, 2020 

 

Page 10 of 20 
 

 
 

number of homes passed. The report must also include the Franchisee’s total operating 

revenues from each type of cable service, gross revenues and the amount of communications 

tax and PEG access fees by the Franchisee. 

 

The auditors reviewed the revenues submitted to the City by the cable companies noting 

whether all the revenues had been recorded in the PEG Special Revenue Fund account. 100% of 

the revenues were deposited in the City’s bank account; however the auditors noted: 

• On 12/11/19, the Finance Department reclassified eight PEG revenue checks totaling 

$421,999 to properly move PEG revenues from the General Fund to the PEG Special 

Revenue Fund Account.   

• Two PEG revenue checks dated 7/21/17 and 10/20/17 for $61,426.93 and $59,555.84, 

respectively were not recorded in the PEG Special Revenue Fund account.  These 

payments were recorded in multiple General Fund accounts, such as Right of Ways, 

Utility Sales and/or Consumption tax.  Upon auditors’ inquiries, these revenues were 

reclassified and coded to the PEG Account on April 17, 2020.   

 

The auditors noted neither Finance nor OPS monitored the revenues for completeness. OPS and 

Finance staff did not know where the funds should have been recorded. 

 

Untimely Deposits 

The auditors noted revenue payments submitted to the City for the PEG Special Revenue Fund 

account were not deposited timely.   Three checks totaling $154,092 were deposited at least 

three months after the check issuance date as depicted on the following table: 

Check Date Paid Amount Deposit Date 

1/24/19 $51,737.05    
10/11/19 

  
4/24/19 $50,281.07 

7/24/19 $52,073.95  

  



Richmond City Auditor’s Report #2020-13 
Citywide  
Special Revenue Funds  
May 21, 2020 

 

Page 11 of 20 
 

 
 

Recommendations: 

4. We recommend the Communications Director develop and implement formal procedures to 
ensure compliance with the PEG franchise agreements/Cable Ordinance.  
 

5. We recommend the Communications Director work with the Budget Department to find 
and obtain legislative approval to appropriate $1,229,840 from other, more appropriate 
funding sources, to recover the funds used for unallowable PEG expenditures. 
 

6. We recommend the Communications Director ensure expenses which occurred subsequent 
to December 31, 2019 for website re-design and web services, and 31% of the production 
studio/office renovation cost be reclassified from or not charged to the PEG Special Revenue 
Fund account. 
 

7. We recommend the Communications Director hold the website vendor accountable for firm 
implementation dates and product for the investment made in website development.  
 

8. We recommend the Communications Director implement a monitoring process to ensure 
funds collected are complete and deposited in accordance with the Department of 
Finance’s Cash Collections Policies and Procedures. 

 
Finding 4 – Affordable Housing Trust Fund 

In 2012, the City invested $1.5 Million in the form of a 20-year recoverable grant to Richmond 

Redevelopment and Housing Authority (RRHA) to support the redevelopment of the Dove Street 

area.  Pursuant to a Cooperative Agreement between RRHA and the City of Richmond, RRHA is 

required to submit interest payments of $14,000 to the City annually. 

Expenses  

During FY19, the expenditures charged to the Affordable Housing Special Revenue Fund account 

totaled $876,788.  The auditors reviewed all the expenditures to determine whether they were 

allowable expenses and noted no exceptions.   

   

 

 



Richmond City Auditor’s Report #2020-13 
Citywide  
Special Revenue Funds  
May 21, 2020 

 

Page 12 of 20 
 

 
 

Revenues 

During FY19, City Council appropriated $1 Million to the Affordable Housing Trust Special 

Revenue Fund.  In addition to the Council appropriation, revenues of $56,739 were recorded in 

the account in FY19.  However, that total included a check for $14,000 that had been voided.  

The check, which was dated January 24, 2018 was deposited over a year after its issuance date.    

Except for $14,000, the revenues recorded in the account were applicable to prior years’ interest 

revenues.  In 2019, RRHA issued three checks to replace checks that were originally issued 

between 2015 and 2018.  The untimely deposits for the replacement and other checks are 

depicted on the following table: 

Check date Amount Deposit Date 
1/24/18 $14,000  

2/15/19 1/16/19 $14,000 
2/6/19 $14,000 
3/20/19 $14,000 4/18/19 
3/20/19 $739.20 

 
According to the Department of Finance’s Cash Collections Policies and Procedures, “All 

organizational units in the City that accept cash receipts as a form of payment for goods or 

services, shall deposit cash receipts of $100 or more within 2 business days.” 

 

Poor oversight over the staff responsible for the administration of the funds collected and staff 

turnover over this function impacted the untimely deposits.  Untimely deposits can result in lost 

revenue and decrease in services provided by the City. Additionally, the risk of misappropriating 

funds and revenues going unnoticed increases when monitoring procedures are not in place. 

Due to the weak internal controls in recording and monitoring revenues, a more comprehensive 

review of revenues will be conducted during FY2021. 

 
 

 

 



Richmond City Auditor’s Report #2020-13 
Citywide  
Special Revenue Funds  
May 21, 2020 

 

Page 13 of 20 
 

 
 

Recommendation:  

9. We recommend the Director of the Housing and Community Development develop and 
implement a monitoring process to ensure funds collected are deposited in accordance with 
the Department of Finance’s Cash Collections Policies and Procedures. 

 
Finding #5 – Law Library Special Revenue Fund 

According to Code of Virginia §42.1-70, as a part of each civil action, localities can charge a fee of 

up to $4 to be used to create and maintain a law library.  The fee is to be collected by the Clerk 

of the Courts where the action is filed and remitted to the City’s Financial Officer.  In 1994 the 

City adopted Ordinance 94-42-52 to enact the State law.  The fee then was $2 and was increased 

per Ordinance 2012-110-113 to $4 where it remains. The General and Circuit Courts submit the 

funds collected to Central Finance on a monthly basis via a check.  

 

Expenses 

During FY19, expenditures of $358,000 were charged to the Law Library Special Revenue Fund 

account. The auditors reviewed all the expenditures and noted no exceptions.       

 

Revenues 

During FY19, the Finance Department received 24 payments from the General District and Circuit 

Courts (12 payments each) totaling $239,317.  The auditors reviewed the general ledger to 

validate the completeness of the funds received.  100% of the revenues received in FY19 were 

recorded in the Law Library Special Revenue Fund account. 

 

Fund Balance 

As of June 30, 2019 the Law Library was in a deficit of $324,212.25.  The auditors noted the 

Finance Department did not code the revenues to the Law Library Special Revenue Fund from 

FY14 through FY17.  A lump-sum of $1,290,277.04 in revenues were coded to the Fund in FY18 

to reclassify the revenues received from FY14 through FY17.   



Richmond City Auditor’s Report #2020-13 
Citywide  
Special Revenue Funds  
May 21, 2020 

 

Page 14 of 20 
 

 
 

According to Library staff, they did not receive communication from Finance staff about when 

and how funds were received and as a result they were unaware of the total revenues received 

and the account’s running balance.  They also have not been trained on the reporting capabilities 

of RAPIDS.  The auditors noted, the Library staff did not reconcile the account to reflect available 

funding.  During FY19, the expenditures exceeded the revenues by $118,180.     

 
Recommendations: 

10. We recommend the Library Director work with the Finance Director to ensure Library staff are 
trained on the reporting capabilities of RAPIDS. 

11. We recommend the Library Director establish a reconciliation process for the Law Library 
Special Revenue Fund account. 

12. We recommend the Library Director develop a strategy to address overspending in the Law 
Library Special Revenue Fund account to ensure expenditures do not exceed the revenues. 

13. We recommend the Library Director work with the Budget Department to request 
legislative approval to appropriate funds to cover the June 30, 2019 deficit of $324,212.25 
for the Law Library Special Revenue Fund account. 

 
Finding #6 – Permits and Inspections Technology Renewal Fee 

The Permitting and Inspections Technology Renewal Fund was adopted May 27, 2008.  The 

Special Revenue Fund account was established to increase the permits and inspection fees to 

offset the costs of purchasing and maintaining a new land management tracking system.  In 

addition, an initial investment was required by ordinance to be made into the Permitting and 

Inspections Technology Renewal Fund.  5% of these fees are required to be allocated to the 

Technology Renewal Special Revenue Fund account.  

Expenses 

During FY19, The Technology Renewal Fund account had 18 expenditures totaling $310,822.  The 

auditors reviewed all the expenditures to ensure they were allowable expenditures.  The 

auditors noted 100% of the expenditures were allowable.   



Richmond City Auditor’s Report #2020-13 
Citywide  
Special Revenue Funds  
May 21, 2020 

 

Page 15 of 20 
 

 
 

Revenues 

The auditors noted the 5% permit fee allocation to the account was under allocated by $47,388 

during FY19.  Additionally, Finance staff who keyed the journal entry in RAPIDS keyed one of the 

numbers incorrectly, which further understated the allocation by $2,000.  The under allocation 

was as follows:    

 
     Revenues 

Reported 
Actual  

Revenues 
Under 
Reported 
Revenues 

Under 
Allocated 
Amount 

Total Revenues $8,972,567  $9,920,318 ($947,751)  

5% of Variance    $47,388 

Error   $2,000 

  Total  $49,388 

 
The understatement was due to staff using the preliminary general ledger balances instead of 

the final revenues to calculate the allocation.  Additionally, the Planning and Development 

Review Department (PDR) did not have written procedures to guide staff through the process.   

During a recent Permits and Inspections audit, we recommended for the PDR Director to 

implement a process to ensure proper allocation of funds to the Special Revenue Fund Account.  

This recommendation has not yet been implemented. 

 
Recommendation:  

14. We recommend the Director of Planning and Development Review submit an adjusting 
entry of $49,387.53 to increase the Technology Renewal Special Fund account by the 
appropriate amount. 

 
Finding #7 – Special District Assessments  
Property owners within the Downtown Special District pay additional taxes to assist funding a 

program to beautify and improve cleanliness and the feeling of safety downtown, which is 

managed by a third party vendor. The City provides funding annually to support the Program.     



Richmond City Auditor’s Report #2020-13 
Citywide  
Special Revenue Funds  
May 21, 2020 

 

Page 16 of 20 
 

 
 

Expenses 

During FY19, the Special District Assessment account had disbursements of $1,913,898 paid to 

the third party vendor.  Additionally, payments of $20,112 were issued to refund incorrect 

assessments.  The auditors reviewed all the expenditures to ensure they were allowable 

expenditures and found no exceptions.   

 

Revenues 

In September 2019, staff from the Department of Economic and Community Development 

notified Finance staff that the projected revenues for the Special District were incorrect.   

Research by Finance staff revealed that over several years, rehabilitation exemptions had been 

erroneously applied against Special District charges.  Rehabilitation exemptions should only be 

applied to the real estate tax charges, not the Special District account. The revenue 

understatement was approximately $557,895 as depicted on the following table:  

 
Tax Year No. of 

Accounts 
Amount 

2019 798 $279,330.13 
2018 755 $276,970.32 
2014 4 $1,044.28 
2013 2 $550.01 
  Total  $557,894.74 

 
 

The revenues were understated due to a coding error.  Staff were assigned specific accounts to 

correct the error and move the revenues to the Special District Assessments account.  The 

Finance Department’s operating procedures did not provide guidance for handling real estate 

rehabilitation exemptions.  According to Finance management, a protocol was not in place. 

However, procedures have been developed and will be added to their Standard Operating 

Procedures.    

 
 



Richmond City Auditor’s Report #2020-13 
Citywide  
Special Revenue Funds  
May 21, 2020 

 

Page 17 of 20 
 

 
 

Recommendation: 

15. We recommend the Program and Operations Manager for the Commissioner of Revenue in 
Finance update their Standard Operating Procedures to ensure real estate rehabilitation 
exemptions are applied correctly. 

 
Funds in Deficit 
As noted earlier, seven special revenue funds were in deficit at the end of FY19.  However, as of 

January 2020, the Delinquent Tax Sales and the Main Street Station Operating accounts had 

been corrected and were no longer in deficit.  We also noted the Young Adult Services account 

was set up erroneously and will be closed as it did not exist.  The Deficit for the Law Library 

account was previously discussed in this report and the remaining accounts that were in deficit 

as of June 30, 2019 are as follows: 

 
Finding #8 – Rapid Transit Pulse Project  

The Department of Economic and Community Development (DECD) was responsible for 

managing the Rapid Transit Pulse Project Special Revenue Fund account.  As of June 30, 2019, 

the account had a deficit of $119,639.32.  The fund was used for public outreach activities to 

offset the impact on local businesses affected by the Rapid Transit Pulse project.  During FY20, 

this Fund was transferred to the Department of Public Works (DPW).  However, activities for this 

project had ceased prior to the transfer. 

 
The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) recommends reviewing and reconciling 

revenues and expenditures to ensure entries are accurate in the official reporting system to 

avoid errors or potential budgeted fund deficits. 

 
According to DECD staff, a former employee did not reconcile the account and did not transfer 

funds to the account. Thereby, leaving it in a deficit. 

 
 



Richmond City Auditor’s Report #2020-13 
Citywide  
Special Revenue Funds  
May 21, 2020 

Page 18 of 20 

Recommendation: 

16. We recommend the Director of Housing and Community Development ensure staff 
reconcile and close out the deficit in the Rapid Transit Pulse Project Special Revenue Fund 
account.   

Finding #9 – DJS Supervision Fees  

The Department of Justice Services (DJS) collects Supervision Fees as part of their offender 

supervision services.  These fees are recorded in the Supervision Fees Special Revenue Fund 

account.  As of June 30, 2019, the account had a deficit of $21,933.31.   

DJS management did not have oversight procedures in place to ensure funds deposited matched 

the revenues recorded in RAPIDS.  The Supervision Fees account was not reconciled to ensure 

the accuracy of the available funds.    

According to DJS management, upon researching the activities in the Supervision Fees Special 

Revenues Fund account, they noted the revenues recorded in RAPIDS were understated by 

$1,744 and $2,395 in FY16 and FY17, respectively.  Additionally, they noted in FY14, the Finance 

Department transferred $49,478.87 to the General Fund without their knowledge. 

DJS management corrected the account deficit balance prior to the conclusion of this audit. 

Recommendation: 

17. We recommend the Director of Justice Services develop and implement monitoring 
procedures to ensure the Supervision Fees Special Revenues Fund account is reconciled in a 
timely and consistent basis. 

Finding #10 - Public Library Foundation 

The Richmond Public Library Department receives donations for purchasing books and library 

materials.  These funds are recorded in their Library Foundation Special Revenues Fund account.  

As of June 30, 2019, the Fund had a deficit of $25,047.27.   



Richmond City Auditor’s Report #2020-13 
Citywide  
Special Revenue Funds  
May 21, 2020 

 

Page 19 of 20 
 

 
 

In FY15, staff from the Department of Finance erroneously posted revenues of $33,500 to the 

Gifts to the Library Fund instead of the Library Foundation Fund account in RAPIDS.  Library staff 

were aware the account balance in RAPIDS was incorrect but they did not know how to navigate 

the reporting capabilities in RAPIDS.  Although the Library staff knew they had deposited $33,500 

for the Library Foundation account, they could not locate the deposit in RAPIDS and did not 

know how to run reports to find out where the revenues were posted.  

 

Recommendation: 

18.  We recommend the Library Director work with the Finance Director to reclassify the 
erroneous posting of $33,500 to the Library Foundation Special Revenue Fund account. 

 
Other Observations 
 
Finding #11 Delinquent Tax Sales Special Revenue Fund 
 
Pursuant to State Code, after the second year delinquency for a parcel, a locality may sell the 

property.  The purpose of the sale is to collect delinquent taxes on such properties.  The net 

sales proceeds after other distributions are recorded in a Delinquent Tax Sales Special Revenue 

Fund account.   

  

The City Attorney’s Office oversees the activities on this account.  Staff rely on the State Code for 

guidance.  However, the State Code is vague and left to interpretation in some areas.   Without 

policies and procedures, knowledge may not be retained with turnover, resulting in unallowable 

expenditures. The City Attorney’s Office is currently developing a Policy and Procedures manual 

to address the areas left to interpretation and give their staff guidance.  This policy has not has 

not yet been finalized.   

 
 

 



Richmond City Auditor’s Report #2020-13 
Citywide  
Special Revenue Funds  
May 21, 2020 

 

Page 20 of 20 
 

 
 

Recommendation: 

19.  We recommend the City Attorney finalize the Policy and Procedures for the Delinquent Tax 
Sales Special Revenue Fund account, which should specifically include allowable 
expenditures. 



APPENDIX A: Excess Funds Table 
2020-13 Citywide - Special Revenue Funds Audit 

 
 

Department 
Funds as of 
6/30/2019 Count 

DPW $8,620 1 

ECD & HCD $72,385 1 

Finance $293,086 3 

Fire & EMS $11,681 2 

Human Services $62,990 5 

Justice Services $50,981 1 

Library $11,788 2 

Parks and Recreation $1,473,004 5 

Port of Richmond $60 1 
 
Social Services 

 
$37,635 

 
1 

Grand Total $2,022,230 22 
 



# RECOMMENDATION CONCUR 
Y/N

ACTION STEPS

1
We recommend the Chief Administrative Officer develop
and implement formal policies and procedures to provide
guidance on creating, monitoring and closing Special
Revenue Fund accounts.

Y
The DCAO for Finance and Administration will work with the Budget
and Finance Departments to provide this formal guidance to City
agencies.

#REF! TITLE OF RESPONSIBLE PERSON TARGET DATE

#REF! Deputy CAO for Finance and Administration August 31, 2020
#REF! IF IN PROGRESS, EXPLAIN ANY DELAYS IF IMPLEMENTED, DETAILS OF IMPLEMENTATION

#REF!
\

# RECOMMENDATION CONCUR 
Y/N

ACTION STEPS

2
We recommend the Director of Finance remove the
identified accounts from the Special Revenue Fund
accounts and move them to their respective cost centers
in the Grants Module, General Fund or Enterprise Fund
and work with the Budget Department to request any
budget adjustments that may require legislative approval.

Y

Finance staff will work with Budget and Strategic Planning and the
respective agencies with unspent special fund balances to direct
those balances to a properly determined fund and cost center.

#REF! TITLE OF RESPONSIBLE PERSON TARGET DATE

#REF! City Controller August 31, 2020
#REF! IF IN PROGRESS, EXPLAIN ANY DELAYS IF IMPLEMENTED, DETAILS OF IMPLEMENTATION

#REF!

# RECOMMENDATION CONCUR 
Y/N

ACTION STEPS

3 We recommend the Director of Finance assign a specific
staff person to be responsible for follow-up of all material
General Fund revenue variances at the end of each
quarter.

Y
A specific Finance staff person will be identified and trained on the
roles and responsibilities of general fund revenue forecasting and
variance analysis.

#REF! TITLE OF RESPONSIBLE PERSON TARGET DATE

#REF! Deputy Director of Finance May 31, 2020
#REF! IF IN PROGRESS, EXPLAIN ANY DELAYS IF IMPLEMENTED, DETAILS OF IMPLEMENTATION

#REF!

# RECOMMENDATION CONCUR 
Y/N

ACTION STEPS

4
We recommend the Communications Director develop
and implement formal procedures to ensure compliance
with the PEG franchise agreements/Cable Ordinance. 

Y
The Communications Director will develop and implement a formal
procedure to ensure compliance with the PEG franchise
agreements/cable ordinance.

#REF! TITLE OF RESPONSIBLE PERSON TARGET DATE

#REF! Communications Director 30-Jun-20
#REF! IF IN PROGRESS, EXPLAIN ANY DELAYS IF IMPLEMENTED, DETAILS OF IMPLEMENTATION

#REF!

# RECOMMENDATION CONCUR 
Y/N

ACTION STEPS

5 We recommend the Communications Director work with
the Budget Department to find and obtain legislative
approval to appropriate $1,229,840 from other, more
appropriate funding sources, to recover the funds used for
unallowable PEG expenditures.

Y

OPS and the Budget Director will work with Council to
reappropriate funds. 

#REF! TITLE OF RESPONSIBLE PERSON TARGET DATE

#REF! Communications Director 30-Jun-20
#REF! IF IN PROGRESS, EXPLAIN ANY DELAYS IF IMPLEMENTED, DETAILS OF IMPLEMENTATION

#REF!

APPENDIX B: MANAGEMENT RESPONSE FORM             
2020-13 Citywide - Special Revenue Funds Audit



APPENDIX B: MANAGEMENT RESPONSE FORM             
2020-13 Citywide - Special Revenue Funds Audit

# RECOMMENDATION CONCUR 
Y/N

ACTION STEPS

6
We recommend the Communications Director ensure
expenses which occurred subsequent to December 31,
2019 for website re-design and web services, and 31% of
the production studio/office renovation cost be
reclassified from or not charged to the PEG Special
Revenue Fund account.

Y

The expenses will be reclassified and not charged to the PEG Special
Revenue Account.

#REF! TITLE OF RESPONSIBLE PERSON TARGET DATE

#REF! Senior Public Relations Manager 30-Jun-20
#REF! IF IN PROGRESS, EXPLAIN ANY DELAYS IF IMPLEMENTED, DETAILS OF IMPLEMENTATION

#REF!

# RECOMMENDATION CONCUR 
Y/N

ACTION STEPS

7

We recommend the Communications Director hold the
website vendor accountable for firm implementation
dates and product for the investment made in website
development.

Y

Accountability benchmarks for staged completion of work as
stipulated in developer contract existed throughout the term of the
agreement. Final product was formally accepted as completed by
website project manager on May 11. 

#REF! TITLE OF RESPONSIBLE PERSON TARGET DATE

#REF! Communications Director Complete
#REF! IF IN PROGRESS, EXPLAIN ANY DELAYS IF IMPLEMENTED, DETAILS OF IMPLEMENTATION

#REF!

# RECOMMENDATION CONCUR 
Y/N

ACTION STEPS

8
We recommend the Communications Director implement
a monitoring process to ensure funds collected are
complete and deposited in accordance with the
Department of Finance’s Cash Collections Policies and
Procedures.

Y

The Communications Director in collaboration with the Finance
Director will develop an SOP regarding the collection and deposit of
future PEG revenues. 

#REF! TITLE OF RESPONSIBLE PERSON TARGET DATE

#REF! Communications Director 30-Jun-20
#REF! IF IN PROGRESS, EXPLAIN ANY DELAYS IF IMPLEMENTED, DETAILS OF IMPLEMENTATION

#REF!

# RECOMMENDATION CONCUR 
Y/N

ACTION STEPS

9

We recommend the Director of the Housing and
Community Development develop and implement a
monitoring process to ensure funds collected are
deposited in accordance with the Department of Finance’s
Cash Collections Policies and Procedures.

Y

The Director of Housing and Community Development will create a
Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) for the processing of all monies
received by department staff to ensure that the collected funds are
deposited in accordance with the Department of Finance's Cash
Collections Policies and Procedures by the end of FY20 - June 30,
2020.

#REF! TITLE OF RESPONSIBLE PERSON TARGET DATE

#REF! Director of Housing 30-Jun-20
#REF! IF IN PROGRESS, EXPLAIN ANY DELAYS IF IMPLEMENTED, DETAILS OF IMPLEMENTATION

#REF! SOP



APPENDIX B: MANAGEMENT RESPONSE FORM             
2020-13 Citywide - Special Revenue Funds Audit

# RECOMMENDATION CONCUR 
Y/N

ACTION STEPS

10
We recommend the Library Director work with the Finance 
Director to ensure Library staff are trained on the
reporting capabilities of RAPIDS.

Y
Library Director will coordinate with Finance Director to train
responsible library staff on RAPIDS Reports

#REF! TITLE OF RESPONSIBLE PERSON TARGET DATE

#REF! Library Director 1-Sep-20
#REF! IF IN PROGRESS, EXPLAIN ANY DELAYS IF IMPLEMENTED, DETAILS OF IMPLEMENTATION

#REF!

# RECOMMENDATION CONCUR 
Y/N

ACTION STEPS

11
We recommend the Library Director establish a
reconciliation process for the Law Library Special Revenue
Fund account.

Y
Library Director will coordinate with Finance a monthly
reconciliation process for Law Library Special Funds.

#REF! TITLE OF RESPONSIBLE PERSON TARGET DATE

#REF! Library Director 1-Sep-20
#REF! IF IN PROGRESS, EXPLAIN ANY DELAYS IF IMPLEMENTED, DETAILS OF IMPLEMENTATION

#REF!

# RECOMMENDATION CONCUR 
Y/N

ACTION STEPS

12
We recommend the Library Director develop a strategy to
address overspending in the Law Library Special Revenue
Fund account to ensure expenditures do not exceed the
revenues.

Y

Library Director will coordinate with Finance a monthly
reconciliation process for Law Library Special Funds.

#REF! TITLE OF RESPONSIBLE PERSON TARGET DATE

#REF! Library Director 1-Sep-20
#REF! IF IN PROGRESS, EXPLAIN ANY DELAYS IF IMPLEMENTED, DETAILS OF IMPLEMENTATION

#REF!

# RECOMMENDATION CONCUR 
Y/N

ACTION STEPS

13
We recommend the Library Director work with the Budget
Department to request legislative approval to appropriate
funds to cover the June 30, 2019 deficit of $324,212.25 for
the Law Library Special Revenue Fund account.

Y
Library and Budget have requested City Council appropriate funds
via a reserve assignment from the General Fund to cover the June
30, 2019 deficit of $324,212.25 for the Law Library Special Fund
account.

#REF! TITLE OF RESPONSIBLE PERSON TARGET DATE

#REF! Library Director 30-Jun-20
#REF! IF IN PROGRESS, EXPLAIN ANY DELAYS IF IMPLEMENTED, DETAILS OF IMPLEMENTATION

#REF!

# RECOMMENDATION CONCUR 
Y/N

ACTION STEPS

14
We recommend the Director of Planning and
Development Review submit an adjusting entry of
$49,387.53 to increase the Technology Renewal Special
Fund account by the appropriate amount.

Y

PDR will make the necessary adjustment entry and increase the
Technology Renewal Special Fund account in the amount noted.

#REF! TITLE OF RESPONSIBLE PERSON TARGET DATE

#REF! Director of Planning and Development Review 30-Jun-20
#REF! IF IN PROGRESS, EXPLAIN ANY DELAYS IF IMPLEMENTED, DETAILS OF IMPLEMENTATION

#REF!



APPENDIX B: MANAGEMENT RESPONSE FORM             
2020-13 Citywide - Special Revenue Funds Audit

# RECOMMENDATION CONCUR 
Y/N

ACTION STEPS

15
We recommend the Program and Operations Manager for
the Commissioner of Revenue in Finance update their
Standard Operating Procedures to ensure real estate
rehabilitation exemptions are applied correctly.

Y

Standard Operating Procedures will be updated accordingly.

#REF! TITLE OF RESPONSIBLE PERSON TARGET DATE

#REF! Program and Operations Manager for Commissioner of Revenue May 31, 2020

#REF! IF IN PROGRESS, EXPLAIN ANY DELAYS IF IMPLEMENTED, DETAILS OF IMPLEMENTATION

#REF!

# RECOMMENDATION CONCUR 
Y/N

ACTION STEPS

16 We recommend the Director of Housing and Community
Development ensure staff reconcile and close out the
deficit in the Rapid Transit Pulse Project Special Revenue
Fund account.

Y The staff of the Department of Housing and Community
Development will reconcile and close out the deficit in the Rapid
Transit Pulse Project Special Revenue Fund account on or before
June 5, 2020.

#REF! TITLE OF RESPONSIBLE PERSON TARGET DATE

#REF! Director of Housing/DCAO of ECD 5-Jun-20
#REF! IF IN PROGRESS, EXPLAIN ANY DELAYS IF IMPLEMENTED, DETAILS OF IMPLEMENTATION

#REF! Reconcile and closeout of account

# RECOMMENDATION CONCUR 
Y/N

ACTION STEPS

17

We recommend the Director of Justice Services develop
and implement monitoring procedures to ensure the
Supervision Fees Special Revenues Fund account is
reconciled in a timely and consistent basis.

Y
The Director of Justice Services accepts the recommendation and
has already begun to implement internal controls to ensure the
timely, accurate, and consistent reconciliation of Supervision Fees.
In addition, DJS looks forward to working with the Department of
Finance regarding efforts to ensure alignment between deposit
amounts and amounts posted in the EIS report tool.  

#REF! TITLE OF RESPONSIBLE PERSON TARGET DATE

#REF! Director of Justice Services 30-Jun-20
#REF! IF IN PROGRESS, EXPLAIN ANY DELAYS IF IMPLEMENTED, DETAILS OF IMPLEMENTATION

#REF!

Standard accounting procedures and internal controls have been
put in place as of March 26, 2020 to ensure proper
management, oversight and accountability in the Financial
Management Unit. Efforts are underway to review the accuracy
of all the deposits made from July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020. 

# RECOMMENDATION CONCUR 
Y/N

ACTION STEPS

18

We recommend the Library Director work with the Finance 
Director to reclassify the erroneous posting of $33,500 to
the Library Foundation Special Revenue Fund account.

Y

Library Director will coordinate with Finance to reclassify the
erroneous posting of $33,500 to the Library Foundation Special
Revenue Fund. 

#REF! TITLE OF RESPONSIBLE PERSON TARGET DATE

#REF! Library Director 30-Jun-20
#REF! IF IN PROGRESS, EXPLAIN ANY DELAYS IF IMPLEMENTED, DETAILS OF IMPLEMENTATION

#REF!



APPENDIX B: MANAGEMENT RESPONSE FORM             
2020-13 Citywide - Special Revenue Funds Audit

# RECOMMENDATION CONCUR 
Y/N

ACTION STEPS

19 We recommend the City Attorney finalize the Policy and
Procedures for the Delinquent Tax Sales Special Revenue
Fund account, which should specifically include allowable
expenditures.

Y
The Office of the City Attorney is in the process of updating its Tax
Sale Program standard operating procedures to identify allowable
expenditures.

#REF! TITLE OF RESPONSIBLE PERSON TARGET DATE

#REF! City Attorney 30-Jun-20
#REF! IF IN PROGRESS, EXPLAIN ANY DELAYS IF IMPLEMENTED, DETAILS OF IMPLEMENTATION

#REF!



AYES: NOES: ABSTAIN: 

ADOPTED: REJECTED: STRICKEN: 

INTRODUCED: May 11, 2020 

AN ORDINANCE No. 2020-110 

To amend Ord. No. 2019-041, adopted May 13, 2019, which adopted the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 
General Fund Budget and made appropriations pursuant thereto, by reducing total appropriations 
by $11,782,826, transferring funds from various agencies and non-departmental programs  and the 
Budget and Revenue Stabilization Contingency Reserve, and appropriating the transferred funds 
to various agencies and non-departmental programs; and to amend Ord. No. 2019-042, which 
adopted the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Special Fund Budget and made appropriations thereto, by 
increasing estimated revenues and the amount appropriated to the Department of Housing and 
Community Development’s Affordable Housing – Non CDBG Areas special fund by 
$1,000,000.00 to provide for affordable housing initiatives. 

Patron – Mayor Stoney 

Approved as to form and legality 
by the City Attorney 

PUBLIC HEARING: MAY 26 2020  AT 6 P.M. 

THE CITY OF RICHMOND HEREBY ORDAINS: 

§ 1. That Ordinance No. 2019-041, adopted May 13, 2019, which adopted a General 

Fund Budget for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2020, and made 

appropriations pursuant thereto, is hereby amended by: 

(a) Reducing total appropriations by $11,782,826 and transferring funds from various 

agencies and non-departmental programs as shown on the attachments to this ordinance entitled 



 2 

“General Fund Attachment” and “Non-Departmental Attachment,” copies of which are attached 

to and incorporated into this ordinance;  

(b) Transferring funds in the amount of $6,241,384 from the Budget and Revenue 

Stabilization Contingency Reserve created by section 12-263 of the Code of the City of Richmond 

(2015), as amended; and 

(c) Appropriating such transferred funds to various agencies and non-departmental 

programs as shown on the attachments to this ordinance entitled “General Fund Attachment” and 

“Non-Departmental Attachment.” 

§ 2. That Ordinance No. 2019-042, adopted May 13, 2019, which adopted a Special 

Fund Budget for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2020, and made 

appropriations pursuant thereto, be and is hereby amended by increasing estimated revenues from 

the funds transferred pursuant to section 1 of this ordinance by $1,000,000.00 and increasing the 

amount appropriated to the Department of Housing and Community Development’s Affordable 

Housing – Non CDBG Areas special fund by $1,000,000.00 for the purpose of providing for 

affordable housing initiatives. 

§ 3. This ordinance shall be in force and effect upon adoption. 

 


























	Wednesday, May 27, 2020
	11:45 a.m.
	A G E N D A

	Public Comment Period:  
	Reports:
	 Library Friends 
	 Library Foundation 
	Administration Reports:
	Board Committee Reports:
	 Chairman
	 Finance Committee
	 Facilities Committee
	 Governance Committee
	Unfinished Business
	Added-2020-13CitywideSpecialRevenueFundsAudit.pdf
	5.21.20 Cover Letter
	Final Special Funds 5.21.20
	Highlights

	Appendix A
	MANAGEMENT RESPONSES_FINAL COMBINED_ 5.19.2020 4.47pm
	MASTER



